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Group at a glance

Nestor Healthcare Group plc I1s an independent organisation dedicated
to delivering services to the health and social care market We deliver
managed services, through our partner organisations and direct to
individuals, focused on meeting a person’s needs and thereby enhancing

their wellbeing.

Our emphasis on person-centred, effective solutions makes us a strong
partner providing short- or long-term health and social care for the
community Established in 1949, we employ a nationwide workforce,
managed and deployed from our network of local offices.

Social Care describes the care of people, of

all ages, which meets theirr common human
needs to enable a certain quality of life

We deliver managed services to those in need
of care at home in order to allow people to
Iive, as fully as possible, a Iife of their choosing
The services are provided through Local
Authorties, Primary Care Trusts or direct to
the individual

¢ We deliver more than 16 millon hours of
care annually

* We provide care to over 30,000 individual
service users supported by over 16,000
careworkers

Primary Care 1s usually the first point of contact
for patients Primary Care Trusts and Local
Health Boards plan and commission health
care services for their local communities
Governments’ agendas continue to drive
towards an environment of quality care and
choice for all Indwviduals

* We are responsible for the healthcare
of 12% of the UK’s population outside
of standard business hours

* We are the UK’s largest provider of
healthcare services to secure institutions
and Police Authorrties
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Chairman’s statement

Introduction

The completion of the nights issue in March 2007 alleviated the
high debt burden on the Group and provided the opportunity
to invest in Social Care acquisitions, of which seven were
completed in 2007 At the same time we have invested in
enhancing our management strength in both Socal Care

and Primary Care It s disappointing 1o report, as previously
announced, that whilst the acquisitions made in 2007 have
made good returns, the profit performance of our core
dormicihary care business within Social Care and the anticipated
growth in Pnmary Care, have both fallen short of our
expectations These are beng addressed by further
strengthenmng the management, taking business development
initiatives and reducing costs, but without compromising service
delivery standards, which have been maintained at a high level
throughout The 1ssues underlying these results are discussed in
more detail below

As detailed in the trading statement 1ssued in Noverber 2007,
the downwards revision in the projected profit performance ied
to the decision to renegotiate one of our banking covenants
The Group did not breach any of sts banking covenants during
this period and in order to ensure that this remamed the case,
we announced in December that agreement had been reached
with our banking syndicate to increase the ratio of net debt to
EBITDA covenant to four times Given the banking climate at the
time this was an expensive process with a significant increase in
the margin paid and an arangement fee of £0 7m, which, far
the purpases of companson to the previous year’s trading
performance, has been shown separately in the table below

Results summary

2007 2006
Continuing operations
Revenue £179 6m £172 6m
Operating profit £131m £18 6m
Profit before tax £89m £138m
Basic earnings per share 54p 10 3p
Loss from discontinued operations - £(20 5m)

Nestor Healthcare Group plc

The results of Healthcare Staffing, the actmty of which was
demerged in 2006, were reported as "discontinued operations”
In last years results and comprised a geodwill wnte down of

£14 5m, plus trading losses and the cost of the demerger process

Results from continuing operations

1007 2006

Operating Operating

Revenue profit Revenue profit

Socal Care £1242m £104m £1114m £14 2m

Primary Care £554m £34m  £612m f44m

Banking fee - E07m) - -

Total £1796m £131m £1726m £18 6m
Soaal Care

These business units provide community services, primarly
homedaare, to Lecal Authorties and prvate patients through a
network of 115 owned branches with a further 123 franchised
branches branded as Carewatch

The growth in revenue in 2007 13 largely attributable to the
input from acquisitions as well as the commencement of the
Hertfordshire contract with effect from 1st February The
Hertfordshire contract 1s for seven years with an opportunity

to extend for a further three Sales to Hertfordshire in the 11
months totalled £6 9m, and in the pencd the contract recorded
a loss of £8 3m, which included redundancy payments of

£0 4m As previously reported, the complexity of the contract,
and the inhented 1ssues around terms of employment and work
practces, were considerably more difficult to manage than
anticpated The workforce, ongnally the subject of a TUPE
transfer from Hertfordshire County Council, were entitled to
payment for guaranteed hours far in excess of the actual work
available and hours worked This imbalance caused the contract
to be loss-making in the early months of our management
However the overall performance in the first year stll met our
anginal expectations, as good progress was made 1n tackling
the above 1ssues whilst maintaining a satisfactory service quality




The contract became increasingly profitable in the fourth
quarter This improvement has continued into 2008 with the
first two months showing increasing hours and profitability and
the contract 1s expected to be an important contnbutor to profit
throughout 2008 and beyond

Social Care margin reduced from 12 79 n 2006 to 8 4% in
2007 The 2006 profit margin benefited by nearly 2% from the
trading and subsequent disposal of our shareholding in
CM2000, a call monitoning software business, and the margin
In 2007 was reduced by nearly 1% by the early stage losses in
Hertfordshire The remaining margin shortfall of 1 5% 1s
attnbutable to the performance of the Goldsborough / Medico
domicihary care business where turnover, excluding Hertfordshire
and acquisitons, was down £2 8m on 2006 This shortfall was
due to vanation i branch performance in meeting profit
expectations and in secuning the necessary care workers to meet
contract demands In addition the continued pressure on Local
Authonty budgets led to a curtailment of expenditure on some
of the less complex care needs of our service users

This vanation tn branch performance was one of the main
catalysts for the change in management structure effected in
Soaial Care during the second half of 2007, with the
appaintment of a new Managing Director and the establishment
of four Regional Director roles The early signs are encouraging,
with a number of tender gains in recent months, the largest
being a senes of “block™ contracts with Surrey County Counail
with up te 5,000 hours per week avallable and scheduled to
commence in the second quarter of 2008 Greater focus 15
being placed on recrurtment methods at the branch level as well
as a number of other initiatives amed at improving branch
profitability The level of tender actvity and the more cansistent,
disaplined management approach being applied has already
started to deliver results and trading in the early part of 2008
has been ahead of management’s expectation The Board 15
more optimistic for the performance of Goldshborough / Medico
In 2008

A total of seven acquisitions were completed in 2007, two

of which are specialist Learming Disabiliies businesses, with

the remaining five being geographic infills to the current
Goldsborough / Medico branch network Overall the acquisitions
are performing In line with ocur expectations with the Learning
Disabilities businesses in particutar producng very good returns

The Carewatch franchise business proved significantly more
resiient than Goldsbarough / Medico with volumes onty
margnally down on the previous year Our two privately funded
homecare businesses, Country Cousins and Patricia White's,
both had excellent years and are well placed to continue ther
growth durning 2008

Primary Care

Primary Care compnses Primecare Pnimary Care, which provides
unscheduled care services to Pnimary Care Trusts (PCTs) and
out-of-hours services to GPs, and Forensic Medical, which
delivers pnmary care services in secure environments and

to Palice Authonties

Primary Care’s reported operating profit shows a reduction

of £1 0m from the previous year The reduction 1s wholly
attnbutable to the investment made in additsonal management
at the divisional fevel, particularly in Business Development, to
better address the expected increase in tender opportunities as
the reorganisation of PCTs was finalised It was not until the final
quarter of 2007 that these opportunities began to emerge and
our experience of these tenders has to date been disappointing
as PCT commussioners continue to favour the retention of a form
of "in-house” provision In addition PCTs are seeking more
complex, “around the dock salutions”, rather than delineating
between in-hours and out-of-hours service provision Given

that the assets of the Pnmary Care business, particularly the
Birmingham clincal response centre, are underutiised during
the day, the prospect of providing a 24 hour service presents

an attractive opporturuty

Annual Report and Accounts 2007 3
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Chairman’s statement continued

There 15 currently a high level of tender activity, parbicularly in the
operation of Urgent Care Centres, which are designed to reduce
Acadent and Emergency admissions, and we remain optimistic
that, having learnt the lessons of the first round of tenders, our
future submissions will more closely fit the customer's requirement
whilst continuing to be highly cornpetitive

Despite a reduction in revenue in 2007, Pnimecare Primary
Care continued to make improvements in efficiencies and the
productivity of its chimical resource These cost reductions have
been achieved with no impairment of the quality of service,
which we believe 1s amongst the best in the sector

Although Pnmecare Pnmary Care did not win any significantly
large tenders in 2007, 1t has recently been successful in
augmenting its business through a number of useful wans, most
notably in February 2008 when Pnmecare, in partnership with
Middlesbrough PCT and Redcar and Cleveland PCT, launched an
innovative new GP service to provide patients with access 1o GPs
from 8am to 8pm, seven days aweek In addition our dental
business has recently won two new contracts, which together
are expected 10 generate revenues In excess of £1 Om per
annurm, and bring our total practices to seven

Ferensic Medical profit performance was consistent with that
achseved In the previous year Theve are a number of tender
opportumties, particularly in the provision of forensic medicat
examiners to Police forces, where our experience of supporting
our current customers should stand us In good stead

Cash fiow

Year end net bomowings were £58 Om (year end 2006

£76 7m), a net inflow of £18 7m, which included the net
proceeds from the nghts ssue of £30 5m The cost of
acquisiiions, including assumed hiabilities, totalled £10 3m,
with a further £3 2m potentially payable in 2008 under vanious
deferred consideration arrangements The total acguisition
spend in 2007 1s in line with the indications given to

Nestor Healthcare Group pic

shareholders at the time of the nghts issue Cash flow

from continuing operations totalled £8 1m (2006 £20 2m),
with the reduction due to the lower level of profitability, the
assumptton and payment of habdities wath acquired businesses
and a negative warking capital impact The latter 1s driven by
an increase 1n debtor days outstanding to 43 days compared
to 37 days at the end of 2006 At the year end there were

a number of debtor accounts with contractual gueries, the
magorty of which have subsequently been resolved with a
consequential reduction in debtor days to 39 at the end of
February 2008

Bank facilities

The Group reduced its banking facilities to a total of £70 Om in
December 2007 at the time of the change in the debt to EBITDA
ratio covenant With no acquisthion acimity currently planned,
these faciities, which are due for renegotiation in December
2009, are expected to be sufficient for current requirements

Taxation

The tax charge for the year was £3 1m (2006 £4 2m), equivalent
to 34 6% of taxable profit {2006 30 6%) This was fugher than
the underlying rate of 30 0% pnmanly as a result of the Inclusion
of two one-off additions to the deferred tax charge ansing from
the change in the future tax rate to 28 0%, which reduces the
value of our deferred tax asset and a reversal of credits previcusly
taken relating to the potential future vesting of share awards

Dwidends

The Board 1s recommending a final dividend of 1 Op per share
(2006 2 Op} payable on 25th july 2008 to shareholders on the
register on 27th june 2008 The final dvidend 1s in addition to
the interim dividend of 1 Op per share (2006 1 Op) paid In
October 2007




Employees

This has been another very busy and testing year for Nestor's
employees and, on behalf of the Board, | thank them all for
their continuing hard work and dedication

Board changes

Stephen Booty will stand down as Chief Executive Officer at the
end of this month after four years in his present role He has
been instrumental in the reshaping of the Group to begin the
process of strengthening management disaplines and focusing
the Group on sccial and primary care activities and the Board
thanks him for his sigrificant contribution to Nestar He and
the Board believe 1t 1s appropnate to seek to refresh the semior
management of the Group to enhance its future growth,

and the process of appointing a successor has commenced

The resignation of Ingnd Alexander as & non-executive director
in March 2007 was reported in my statement last year

Unsolicited approaches

As previousty announced, the Board recerved a number of
approaches i the summer of 2007 and towards the end of
the year, from parties interested in acquinng the Group As
announced on 7th April 2008, these takeover talks have now
been terminated as the Board believed that the proposed
indicative offers did not provide sufficient value to shareholders
These processes were inevitakly a distraction to management
and other employees, but the Board considered 1t in the best
interests of shareholders to fully evaluate these opportunities

Cutlook

2007 was a disappointing year for Nestor Action has been
taken to enhance and improve our management in Social Care
where our business has underperformed against the market and
yet remarns the largest prowider by far | am optimistic that the
more ngorous approach now being adopted wall delver better
returns in the near term The i1ssues i Pnmary Care are more
strategic and 1t 1s clear that last year our approach to the market

was not effectve Management change s also being effected in
this dwviston to ensure the business 1s positioned to exploit the
significant opporturities in the changing landscape for the
celvery of primary care An improved performance will take
longer to deliver in Pnmary Care but there 1s no shortage of
current and expected new business opportunities, which may
enable us to accelerate progress In the meantime all aspects of
the Group's cost base are being addressed in order to produce
the best possible results in 2008 whilst the operational
improvements are realsed

After a difficult 2007, the Board views the present trading with
more optimism wath the opportunities availlable in both business
Sectors o secure new contracts to underpin growth in 2008

John Rennocks
Chairman

10th Apnl 2008
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Operating review

Social Care - our markets and services

Our business

"Social Care’ describes the care of people, of any age, which
meets their common human needs and gives them a certain
quality of Ife It also describes all types of care for a person
that does not involve hospitalisation

Socia! Services’ funds are allocated to sectors of the population
such as older people, children and famihas, people with erther
learning or physical disabilities, mentally 1ll adults and asylum
seekers Funds can also be allocated by the place and/or means
of care, such as day and domicliary care or residential provision

The market for the provision of care for ndmiduals at home
continues to grow with people Iving longer and the desire for
indmduals to lead their bves as independently as possible The
growth in demand for these sennces 1s expected to continue as,
In addition to the factors mentioned above, there remains a
large cost saving compared to the treatment of an ndmdual

in a hospital environment

The services offered by our Social Care businesses

We cffer a complete care service, from an imitial assessment to
determine the service user’s needs, through to the delivery of the
care directly to the service user This modet of service means we
are able to organise complex resource and delivery intiatives,
managed locally to best meet the needs of those requinng social
care services such as domestic, practical and persenal care
Whether care services are commussioned by public funds,
through Local Authorrties, or by a person privately, our focus 1s
to provide a locally based, trained workforce able to meet the
needs of our service users

Care for specialist sectors

Older people - providing older people wath the best possible
quahty of care enables them to make choices about therr qualrty
of Iife Working together within the existing care network can
provide what are sometimes very simple solutions Domestic
services can provide assistance with nutntion, often through
basic support tasks ike accompanied shopping and helping
prepare meals, whilst at the same time helping the indmdual to
retain or regain key skills themselves We also offer enhanced
services such as those for older people with physical disabilities,
or specialist services for conditions ke dementia or Alzheimer’s

Children’s and families’ services - we provide support to children
with learning or physical disabilties as well as where a child’s
parent or pnmary carer has social care needs, such as alcohol

or drug dependency 1ssues

Learning disabilities — our specialist services seek to provide
increased independence and enable the best possible quality
of Iife for people of all ages with learning disabilities Many
individuals with severe and complex communication needs,
sensory loss, and challenging behavicur, are supported by
specialist care workers

Mental health services - specifically designed to meet the needs
of service users who may have long-standing or transient mental
health problems, including pecple subject to guardianship and
supervision orders under the Mental Health Act

Annual Report and Accounts 2007 7




Operating review continued

Social Care — review of the year

The profitability of our Social Care business fell back in 2007

to £10 4m from £14 2m in the previous year The results from
2006 included the profit on disposal, as well as the operating
profit of the CM2000 business up to the date of its sale, In total
this contributed £2 3m

The cther major factor affecting last year's result was the
commencement of the Hertfordshire contract, which was
won by our Goldsborough business in November 2006 with
the provision of care beginming 1n February 2007 At the time
of announang the winring of the contract it was made dlear
that we did not expect to make a return in the first year, given
the complexities of the contract and the inevitable employment
tssues arising from the TUPE transfer of a large number of care
workers and administrative staff In the 11 months to the end
of December 2007 the contract recorded a loss of £0 3m,
effectively a brezkeven performance when taking account

of the redundancy payments of £04m Not surprsingly

the contract was loss-making in the early months of our
management, but as the employrnent issues were tackled to
deliver a better utilisation of the care worker resource, the
contract became increasingly profrtable in the fourth quarter
of 2007 Overall we are pleased wath this outcome and the
relationship we have established with the Council particularty
as the contract 15 for a term of seven years, with the potential
for an extension for a further three years

The Hertfordshire contract 1s the largest indwidual contract
managed by the Goldsborough / Medico branch network,
which mainly provides support to older pecple Inng in their
own homes The bulk of this actvity 1s placed through Local
Authonties where the continued pressure on budgets has led
to the priontisation of care for service users with more complex
care needs Both 'needs’ and ‘means’ testing have become
increasingly stringent and many of the more demestic-type
visits are no longer being funded

The perfermance of Goldsborough 7 Medico in 2007 was
generally disappointing although many of our branches
continue to delver excellent returns despite the general market
conditions and their own local issues This “outperformance” 1
invanably a function of the quality of local management, as well
as the stability of the branch staff and the team of care warkers
However the overall performance of Goldsborough / Medico,
together with the vanance in branch performance, ledto a
significant change in management structure and personnel in
the second half of the year, which saw the appointment of a
new Managing Director and four Regional Directors The new
team has brought a more methodical, consistent approach to
the management of the business and progress 1s being made,
particularly in the area of care worker recruitrnent where many
more Innovative Initatives are being employed with their relative
success rates being properly measured

In the past year, the level of tender activity has been relatively
subdued, with few major contracts avallable We were
successful in wanning a substantial piece of business in Wigan,
which has commenced very successfully in recent weeks Tender
opportuniies have increased in the early months of 2008, and

a number of gains have been achieved, the largest being a
series of contracts in areas managed by Surrey County Counal
Fulfiling the total opportunity would add up to 5,000 hours per
week, with the contract scheduled to commence in the second
quarter of 2008

Goldsbarough / Medico remains the fargest care provider in the
UK, with an excellent reputation for the quality of care it provides
The progress made in recent months by the management team
gives confidence that the business performance will steadily
improve dunng 2008

The primary reason for raising funds from shareholders was to
return to the acquisition of Social Care businesses, which was so
successful in 2003 and 2004 Seven acquisitions were completed
in 2007, five of which represented geographic infills to the
Goldsborough / Medico branch network whilst the other two
extended our expertise N Learning Disabilities Overall the
acquisitions are performing in ine wath our expectations with
the Learning Disabilities businesses 1n particular produang very
good returns

Cur franchise business, Carewatch, which operates in the

same marketplace as Geldsborough 7 Medico, experenced the
same market-related 1ssues but delivered a significantly better
performance, with volumes only sightly down cn the previous
year The Group’s pnmary income from Carewatch is a
management service fee based on the revenues earned by each
franchise The franchisees’ performance in 2007 demonstrates
again the benefits to be gained from local market knowledge
and in particular, the constant effort directed to the development
of close working relationships with Local Authonties and with
their own staff and care workers

Our two privately funded homecare businesses, Country
Cousins and Patrnicia White's, both had excellent years and

are well placed to cantinue thetr growth in both revenue

and profitability in 2008 Both businesses fargely rely on new
business from “word of mouth” recommendations, which

are testament to the ugh quality of the service prowided The
econormic model differs from that of Goldsborough 7 Medico,
as the private individual 1s responsible for the paymenit of the
care worker or companion, the Group’s revenue denves purely
from the agency commission earned
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Operating review continued

Primary Care — our markets and services

Our business

Pamary Care s usually the first point of contact for patents,
often via therr local GP The majonty of our staff working within
primary care are chricians and include, amangst others, GPs,
nurses, health visrtors, dentists, opticians and pharmacists

The major elements of our customer base are Pnmary Care
Organisations (PCOs), which include Pnmary Care Trusts and
Local Health Boards, who plan and commission health services
for therr local communities The responsibility of PCOs 15 to
ensure that adequate, accessible and relevant health senvices
are prowided to their locat communities, embracing hospitals,
dentists, mental health services, walk-in centres, patient
transport, population screeming, pharmacees and opticians
They are also responsible for making certam health and social
care systems work together for the benefit of patients

The services offered by our Primary Care businesses
Out-of-hours — our Primecare business provides services out

of standard business hours to GPs and dental services, which
are commissioned by the PCOs The GP's patients are redirected
to Pnmecare for emergency and/or unscheduled care services
Through a ngorous climical governance process we determine
the most appropnate course of action and then organise

and manage the services for that person This may result in
telephone advice, an appointment to attend a Primary Care
Centre (PCC), or a visit by a doctor in the patrent’s own home

In-hours services — Pnmecare prowides In-hours services o
support GPs and therr patients, with services including horne
visiting, telephone answering and PCC consultations to help
meet daytime demand on a short- or long-term basis

Working with A & E departments — in several areas Pnmecare
works in partnership with A & E departmenis to ensure that
patients who wisit a Pnmecare PCC and require urgent
emergency treatment are referred quickly to the department
This model also allows A & E departments to refer patients to
Primecare wherever appropnate

Protected learning — providing in-hours cover to GP practices
The need to address training and management reguirements
15 key ta any successful GP practice However, 1t s not ahways
possible to address these 1ssues dunng nermal practice hours
Prirmnecare’ protected learning service meets this need by
providing cover to practices including all call handling, triage
and consultations

Special allocation schemes ~ protecting GPs and therr staff by
caring for ndmiduals removed from practice lists Working in
partnership with PCOs and GP practices, Primecare provides a
wital secure service to delver general medical senaces to difficult,
potentiaily violent patients, consistent with responsibilities placed
on PCOs by the Department of Health

Managed healthcare - an alternative to hospital treatment,
talored to meeting the needs of ndviduals in the community,
which can include the treatment of quite complex conditions
in the patient’s home

Secure and Police - our Secure and Police businesses provide
chinical services to secure establishments and police forces

They both supply doctors, nurses and other healthcare and
support staff who have the expertise to provide the complete
range of surgery and on-call services required by our customers
Services are tailored to the needs of each establishment or police
force and delivered through a carefully chosen combination of
GP- and nurse-led care
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Operating review continued

Primary Care - review of the year

The need for our Pnmary Care business to invest in an expansion
of Its management team, particularly in Business Development,
was identified towards the end of 2006 as necessary to mare
effectively address customer requirements and the expected
tender opportunities The cost of this investment exceeded

£1 0m in 2007 and 15 the marm factor in the reduction in

profit for the business when compared to the previous year

The pace at which the tender opportunities became available
was initially disapponting but a number did emerge in the final
quarter of 2007 In our trachtional business area of out-of-hours
GP deputising, the trend of PCTs favouring a form of “in-house”
provision has continued This approach led to a small number of
contract losses In Primecare Pnmary Care, causing a reduction in
its annual revenues to £40 Sm from £44 9m in 2006
Nevertheless this business managed an improvernent in its
profitability by ongoing improvements in efficencies and the
productmvity of the clinical resource An example of a productivity
improvement s the introduction of systerns enabling doctors to
access the onlne tnaging system from the vehicles n which they
are driven, so that any time that becomes available between
home visits to patients can be used to triage other patients an
the telephone

Our approach to clinical governance remains robust and we
continue to exceed the standards set by the National Quality
requirements for patient access This has led to the large majonty
of Pnmecare’s contracts, which were due for renewal in 2007,
being extended The quality of the service offered by Pnmecare
Primary Care has led to opportuniies being created with our
current PCT customers, the majonty of which are concentrated 1n
the North East, the Midlands and South Wales In February 2008
Primecare, i partnership with Middlesbrough PCT and Redcar
and Cleveland PCT, launched a new GP service to prowide
patents with access to GPs fram 8am to 8pm, seven days a
week Appomntments can be made using a 24 hour phone line
or people can attend without an appointment and wait for the
next available slot

This type of senvice 15 In keeping wath the trend for the more
innovative PCTs to look for integrated, “around the clock
solutions”, rather than making any distinction between the
provision of, and the prowders for, In-hours and out-of-hours
services Our Primary Care business, particularly the Birmingham
clinical response centre, is well positioned to extend its out-of-
hours expertise into a 24 hour operation wath the added benefut

of improving the utilisation of the excellent facility and systems,
which are well proven and up-to-date following the upgrade to
the latest version of the software employed

There 1s currently a high level of tender actmty, particularly in
the operation of Urgent Care Centres, destgned to reduce
Acadent and Emergency admissions, and for the next round
of GP practices Despite our lack of success in winning major
new contracts in 2007 we remain optimistic that the quality of
service we operate, the competitiveness of our cost base and
the improving approach to the tendering process will delver
returns in the future

More success has been recorded in dentistry where two recent
wins in the early months of 2008 have increased our total of
dental practices to seven It is evident that the pressure on PCTs
to ensure that a surtable senace 15 avallable to all therr canstituents
will lead to mare opportunities, particularty in the more deprived
Inner-ciy areas

Forensic Medical produced profits in line with the previous year
As with Primecare Primary Care, the key strength in this business
I1s the quality and robustness of the operational performance,
which has generated a strong reputation with police forces and
priscn operators, both public and private

The Pohice business has continued to Improve service quality
through the recrutment of more full-time medical examiners
rather than relying heawly on sessional doctors The aborted
plan to consoldate police forces into fewver, larger forces led

to a hiatus in the trend to outsource their healthcare provision
However, In recent months, a number of tender opportunities
have become avallable, particularty in the South West of England
and South Wales Currently Pnmecare supports five forces, more
than any other provider, and expects to see a growng trend to
outsource what 1s a cntical service in a difficult environment

Opportunities in the pnson environment invanably take time
to come to frumion given the lead-tme in extending exsting
pnsons or Institutions, or building new ones Long term, the
angoing pressure on the prison estate with the growth in
the prisoner population will lead to growth opportunities

for Forensic Medical, particularly with the transfer of the
responsibility for the prowision of healthcare services to PCTs
The combination of our improving relationships wath PCTs and
the excellent service delivered by the business means we are
well placed to take advantage of any additional services PCTs
may wish {0 outsource

Annual Report and Accounts 2007 13




Operating review continued

Corporate and social responsibilities

Employees

The degree of change undergone by the Group and 1ts markets
continued to place significant stram and responstbility on all
those involved and the dedication to the delivery of the Group's
services remains unstinting

The Group believes that communicating etfectively wath 1ts
employees in all aspects of its business, particularly the economic
and financial factors affecting the Group's performance, 1s
important to its future success In addition it is the Group's policy
to encourage employees to participate n its success, through a
variety of performance-related incentive arrangements, including
the prowvision of savings-related share option schemes

Diversity

The Group recogruses its responstbilities in this key area of
working life and 15 continually taking steps to balance society
and employee needs with its business requirements It has a wide
and varied employee base with significant numbers of female
employees, many at senior management level, as well as a
significant employee base of ndvduals who come from ethnic
MINCNty groupings

The programme 1o actively recruit employees with disabilities,
particularly in the Birrmingham Chrucal Response Centre,
continued throughout the year The Group's operational
working practices and policies continue to comply wath the
Disability Discnmination Act 1995

14 Nestor Healthcare Group ple

Training and development

Nestor Academy — Nestor Academy 1s the framewaork for our
in-house management development programme The objective
15 to identify and develop a cross-functional pool of talented
employees to support the growth of the business and to support
their own personal development

Nestor Management Award {NMA} - NMA 15 an accrecited
professional qualification and 15 equivalent ta NVQ5, first degree
or MBA credits This has been extended to many of our local
branch managers dunng 2007 and s an ongong process

Soaial Care workforce — every new care worker has to undertake
traimng in the new Common Induction Standards, which were
introduced in 2006 Mandatory traming includes admiristration
of medscines, protection of vulnerable adults and manual
handling This traming qualfies as ‘Accredited Prior Learming’
towards the Social Care Workers NVQ2 Award

Clinical governance

The Group remains committed to its robust approach to the
identification and management of cinical nsk We continue to
develop our governance processes to ensure that our services
meet the evolwng and demanding regulatory requirements and
of course indvduals’ safety In Primary Care, measures of patient
access remain well above the natonal quality standards and
measures of patient satisfaction contnue to be good, whilst in
Social Care we have further increased the regularty and scope
of our branch audits




Health and safety

The Board 1s aware of its responsibilities towards its employees
and all users of the Group's services in health and safety matters
It recognises its responsibility for the setting and monitoring of
appropnate polices, guidelines and practices In the formal
Schedule of Matters Reserved for the Board's consideration

The Group's head of Human Resources 15 directly accountable
to the Chief Executive for overseeing safety matters and

worked closely with the Group’s business uruts to roll out revised
policies and reporting arrangements Day to day advice 1s
provided by the Group Health and Safety Manager and by an
external consultancy An ongoing training programme supports
the effectrve implementation of this process, which is based on

a comprehensive series of nsk assessments and reporting
arangements Dunng the year all health and safety matters
rematned integrated into the Nestor Quality Management Systemn

The FTSE4Goed tndex

As a reflection of the health and social care services that we
deliver the Company has been listed on the FTSE4Good index
since 2004

Skills for Life

The Department for Education and Skills {DES) invited the
Group to partiaipate and promote the ‘Skills for Life* programme
as one of the first organisations to be a partner Within many
waorkforce population groups there 1s a recagnised lack of basic
skills in hteracy and numeracy These gaps are being closed
through projects enzhled by budget investment from the
European Social Fund

Environmental policy

As a service-based organisation, with no manufactunng, irmited
transportation faclities and no freehold properties, the Group’s
exposure to environmental nsk ishmited, as 15 1its ability to
control the environmental impact of its actvities During the
year, the Group continued to refine the formal environmental
policy adopted by the Board in 2000, with a particular focus on
matters relating to the chinical senices provided by the Group
The polcy document, which s drected at minimising the
potential Impact of the Group's operations cn the environment,
provides that the Board retains ultimate responsibility for setting
and monitoring its palicy on environmental matters
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Finanaal review

Rights issue

Qn 7th March 2007, the Group completed a 2 for 7 nghts 1ssue
rarsing £30 5m after expenses The primary purpose of the nghts
1ssue was to fund a senes of small acquisitions and seven such
acquisitions were completed dunng the year In addition the
proceeds were also used to invest in additional management in
both Social Care and Prmary Care and to restructure the
workforce acquired following the award of the contract with
Hertfordshire County Counail

Discontinued operations

The results of Healthcare Staffing are reported as “ discontinued
operations” in the comparatve figures reported for 2006, with
a loss of £20 5m made up as follows

Impairment of goodwill £14 Sm
Operating loss £33m
Tax credit £(0 5m)
Costs relating to the demerger £32m

The commentary below for both 2007 and 2006 concentrates
on the Group's ongoing businesses, now focused exclusively on
Social Care and Pnmary Care

Continuing operations — revenue

Revenue for Social Care and Pnmary Care mcreased by 4 0%
to £179 6m wath Social Care recording growth of £12 8m,
{11 5%) to £124 2m, and Pnmary Care a reduction of £5 8m
{9 5%) to £55 4m

The mncrease In Social Care includes the revenues of acquisitions
made at various times of the year, which total £8 Om The large
Hertfordshire County Council contract, won in November 2006,
commenced n February 2007 with revenues in the 11 months
of £6 9m

The reduction i revenues in Pnimary Care s attributable to the
loss of a small number of out-of-hours deputising contracts with
PCTs, who for the most part have decided to internalise a service
that had previously been outsourced to our Primecare business

Continuing operations - operating profit and margins

Operating profit, before interest and tax, totalled £13 im
compared to £18 6m in 2006, a reduction of £5 5m, or 29 3%
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The results for 2007 have borne the £0 7m cost of the
arrangement fee for the change in banking covenant
announced in December 2007

The 2006 operating profit result of Social Care induded

£2 Om generated from the sale of the Group’s shareholding
in CM2000, in additton CM2000 coninbuted a further profit
of £0 3m in the months up to the date of its disposal

The continuing businesses in Social Care had a mixed
perfarmance with the mam dormiciliary care business,
Goldsborough / Medico, not achieving prafit expectations
through a combination of Local Authority budget constramnts
and a lack of care worker resource restricting volumes delivered
under a number of key contracts Conversely Carewatch,

our franchise business cperating in the same marketplace

as Goldsborough / Medico, showed cnly a marginal reduction
in volume and an increased profit contribution to the Group
Nestor's two private domiciliary care providers, Country
Cousins and Patnicia White's, both enjoyed successful years
with significant revenue and profit growth

Primary Care’s businesses each produced operating profit
growth, despite a reduction in revenue in Pnmecare Pnmary
Care where a small number of contracts were lost as PCTs
deaded to take on the provision of out-of-hours services
themselves The overall cperating profit reported for the Pnmary
Care segment, however, shows a reduction on 2006 due to

the significant investment made m enhancing the divisional
management team, particularly in Business Development, to
better address the changing market reguirements and the
expected increase In tender actvity

Profit before tax

Profit before tax amounted to £8 9m (2006 £13 8m), the
reduction being largely due to the 1ssues discussed above

Taxation

The tax charge for the year was £3 1m (2006 £4 2m),
equivalent to 34 6% of taxable profit 2006 30 6%) This was
higher than the undertying rate of 30 0%, and that reported for
2006, due to an increased deferred tax charge assocated with
the reversal of credits previously taken relating to potential
future vesting of share awards, as well as a reduction in the




carrying value of our deferred tax asset with the change in the
future tax rate to 28 0%

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share were 5 4p (2006 10 3p), this
year's number being based on the increased weighted average
number of shares in 155ue following the nghts 1ssue

Cash flow and borrowings

Closing net borrowings for the Group amounted to £58 Om
(2006 £76 7m), a net inflow of £18 7m, which included the net
proceeds from the nghts issue of £30 Sm The cost of acquisitions,
incduding assumed habilities, totalled £10 3m, wath a further

£3 2m potentially payable in 2008 under vanious deferred
consideration arrangements

Cash flow from continuing operations totalled £8 1m

(2006 £20 2m), wath the reduction due to the lower level of
profitabiiity, the assumption and payment of liabilities with
acquired businesses and a negative working capital impact

The cash flow also notes a reduction in creditors and provisiens,
including additional pension scheme contributions of £2 1Tm in
the year, and the payment of £1 4m i settlement of a
longstanding tax dispute in the US

At the year end debtor days outstanding were 43 days
compared to 37 days at the end of 2006 as, \n Social Care,
a number of contractual and service-related issues delayed
payments Most of these 1ssues have been resolved since the
year end, which has enabled debtor days to be reduced to
39 days at the end of February 2008

Net capital expenditure was £1 5m (2006 £1 1m) with the
only significant project being the completion of the upgrade
of IT systems in the Pnmary Care business Capital expenditure
1s expected to remain below the level of depreciation for the
foreseeable future

Dvidends, interest and corporation tax payments amounted
to atotal of £9 9m (2006 £11 6m)

Equity shareholders’ funds

Equity shareholders’ funds increased from £11 9m reported
tn 2006 to £47 2m, largely attnbutable to the nghts 1ssue
completed in March 2007, which generated a net increase of
£30 5Sm The balance of the increase in equity shareholders’

funds 15 represented by the profit for the year and other share
issues, plus actuanal gains ansing in the defined benefit pension
schemes less dividends paid to shareholders

Acquisitions and disposals

A total of seven acquisitions were completed durtng the year,
alln the Social Care business segment The total consideration
payable was £13 Om, of which £3 2m was deferred as at

31st December 2007 In the previous year the Group disposed
of its 51% shareholding in Care Monitoring 2000 Limited,
which generated net cash proceeds of £0 8m

Pensions

In accordance with 1A519 Employment Benefits, the Group 1s
required to compare the market value of its two defined benefit
pension funds’ assets at the year end wath the actuanal habilities
of those funds At 31st Dacember 2007, the pension funds’
assets amounted to a total of £34 7m (2006 £33 Om) cormpared
with total habilities of £41 1m (2006 £45 Omy), a net aggregate
deficrt of £6 4m (2006 £12 Om)

Treasury management and financial instruments
Financial instruments include all assets and habilities of a
financial nature such as cash, loans, finance leases, overdrafts
and long-term habilities Al such instruments play an important
part in the operations of the Group to enable it to operate
smoothly and efficiently and to pay its obligations as they fall
due They also enable the Group to fulfill its investrment strategy
including making appropriate acquisitions The Group's objective
15 to use finanaal nstruments to minimise the cost of capital at
an acceptably low financial nsk and to maximise flexibility to
take advantage of investment and acquisition opportunities

as they anse

The Group 1s pamarily a UK business and does not have
significant exposure to foraign exchange nsks Nevertheless

the Group$ strategy 1s to hedge its foreign exchange exposure
where it anses with foreign currency loans or forward exchange
contracts as appropnate

The main nsks ansing from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate and quidity nsks The Board considers each of
these nsks on a reqular basis and the Group's stance towards
each of these nsks has remaned unchanged

Annual Report and Accounts 2007 17




Financial review continued

The Group started the year with £70 Om of committed
borrowing faclities, plus uncommitted overdraft facilities of
£100m One of the financial covenants entered nto as part of
the faalies agreement called for the ratio of net debt to EBITDA
to be no higher than 3 00 1, measured quarterly In November
2007 the directors concluded that it was unlikely that the actual
ratio would be within this imit at the next measurement point,
being 31st December 2007, and accordingly entered into
discussions with the Company's bankers to vary that covenant
Following these discussions, the debt to EBITDA ratio limit has
been raised to 399 1 as at 31st December 2007 and at the
succeeding quarters through to September 2008, before
declining to 3 25 1 and then 3 00 1 by March 2009 Also as

at 31st December 2007, the committed borrowing facility has
been reduced by £10 Om, 1o £60 Om, whilst the overdraft
facilities of £10 Om remain in place and are now committed
untt Apnil 2009 The overall faclities agreement remains In
place until December 2009

At the end of the year, the Group had borrowings less cash of
£58 0m (2006 £76 7m) and undrawn commutted borrowing
faclimes of £9 2m Mt s, and has been throughout the year,
the Group’s pelicy that no trading in financial nstruments will
be undertaken

Under the banking facilities, the Group has entered into hedging
arrangements which have the effect of fixing £60 Om of its
borrowing within a range of interest rates between 4 50% and
7 00% until September 2010

Controls

Financial and operational contrals remain rebust across the Group
with considerable attention paid to the control environment and
balance sheet management on 2 menthly basis

Ethical matters

The Board has a formal Code of Business Conduct, covenng all
the businesses in the Group, which has consohdated all of the
vanous codes previously applicable to them The Code provides
comprehensive guidelines to all employees as to the standard
of business ethics expected from them as representatives of
the Group It also recognises the importance to the Group of
operating to the highest possible ethical standards, bearing n
mind the nature of the services offered by Group companes
and the needs of their clents
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The Group operates two comprehensive whistieblowing
policies, in respect of clinical 1ssues and general operational
and financial matters

At the Group's Business Resource Centre in Hatfield, most gifts
receved by members of staff from suppliers and potential
suppliers are auctioned amongst all staff (where practicable)
and the proceeds of such auctions are donated to the Group’s
Chanty of the Year

All senior managers are required to dedare, on an annual basis,
any hospitality receved dunng the yearin therr capacity as
employees of the Group and to disclose any interests they

may have in connected or competing organisations These
declarations are monitored by the Group Company Secretary
and reported to the Board at the end of each year

All Board members are required, once a year, to submit their
annua! expense daims to the scrutimy of the entire Board

Martyn Ellis
Finance Director

10th April 2008




Board of directors

John Rennocks Chairman

(62), joined the Group and was appointed to the Board as
Chairman in October 2003 A chartered accountant, he is also
non-executive chairman of Diploma PLC and holds a number of
non-executive appointments in a broad range of companies
including Inmarsat plc, Foreign & Colomal Investment Trust plc
and Babcock International Group PLC

Previcusly, he was Executive Director, Finance of Corus Group plc
formerly British Steel plc) between 1596 and 2001 From 1989
to 1996 he was Finance Director of Powergen plc and prior to
that Finance Director and Company Secretary of Smith &
Nephew plc

He 15 Chairman of the Board's Nomination Committee and
a member of its Audit and Remuneration Committees

Martyn Ellis Finance Director

(51), joined the Group and was appomnted to the Board in May
2003 A cost and management accountant, he previously held
positions as Finance Director of TeleCity plc, Whitecroft plc,
Mann Egerton and Camphbell Foods {UK}

Roger Dye Non-executrve director

(56}, was appointed to the Board as a non-executive director In
January 2004 A chartered accountant, he was Finance Director
of the Dawis Service Group Pl from August 2000 and became
its Chuef Executive in May 2005 A UK public company director
since 1987, he has been Group Finance Director of Transport
Development Group plc, Cray Electronics ple and Domino
Pnnting Scrences plc

He is Chairman of the Board’s Audit Committee and serves on
its Nomination and Remuneration Committees

Sir Andrew Foster Non-executive director

(63), was apponted to the Board in January 2004 He has had a
long and distinguished career in publc service, having served as
Chief Executive of the Audit Cormmission for England and Wales
between 1992 and 2003 Other previous appointments include
Deputy Chief Executive of the NHS and Director of Social Services
for North Yorkshire County Counal He 1s now Deputy Chairman
of the Royal Bank of Canada Eurcpe Ltd , Chairman of the
Commonwealth Games Committee for England, a non-executive
director of the Sports Council and has a range of positions in the
public and private sectors

He 15 the serwor non-executive director and Chairman of the
Board's Remuneration Committee He 1s also a member of its
Nomination and Audit Committees
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Directors’ report

The directors are pleased to present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 3 1st December 2007

Principal activities and business review

Nestor Healthcare Group plc 1s the holding cormpany of a group of companies in the social care and ppmary care sectors s pnncipal
actmities are organised into two business units These comprise

¢ Socal Care - the provision of home and social care personnel and services through a network of company owned and franchise
branches across the UK, and

*  Pnmary Care — the provision of GP and other out-of-hours services to the NHS and the provision of healthcare and related services to
Police Authonitres and secure institutions

Summary results for the year were as follows

2007 2006
Continuing operations

Revenue £179 6m £1726m
Operating profit £131m £186m
Profit before tax £8 9m £13 8m
Basic earnings per share 54p 103p
Loss from discontinued operations - £(20 5my

Results from continuing operations were as follows
2007 2007 2006 2006
Operating Operatng
Revenue profit Revenue profit
Social Care £124 2m £10 Om £1114m f14 2m
Primary Care £55 4m £3 1m £612m £4 4m
Total £179 6m £131m £172 6m £186m

Total equrty at 31st Decemnber 2007 was £47,248,000 (2006 £11,915,000) The increase takes account of the aghts 1ssue of March
2007 when 25,037,620 new shares were issued with total extra capital of £30,486,000 {net of associated expenses) being raised

The Charman'’s statement, operating review and financial review on pages 2 to 18 provide a further business ravew and commentary
on the Group’s activities, trading results and future developments

Results and dividends

The profit attributable to shareholders was £5,829,000 (2006 loss of £10,905,000) The profit after tax from continuing operations was

£5,829,000(2006 £9,569,000) Anintenm dmidend of 1 00 pence was paid in October 2007 following payment of the 2 00 pence final
dividend for 2006 in June 2007 The total dividend paid, representing these combinad dividends of 3 00 pence on the increased number

of shares in 1ssue following the nghts issue, was £3,382,000{2006 £2,629,000)

The directors now recommend a final dwvidend of 1 00 pence per crdinary share, to be paid to shareholders on 25th July 2008

Directors

The directors who served duning the year were Ingnd Alexander, Stephen Booty, Roger Dye, Martyn Ellis, Sir Andrew Foster and John
Rennocks All the directors served throughout 2007 except Ingnd Alexander who resigned on 2nd March 2007

On 7th Apnit 2008 the Company announced that Stephen Booty would be standing down and would be leaving the Group’s
employment on 30th Apnl 2008

In accordance with the Artictes of Assoaation, John Rennocks, Roger Dye and Sir Andrew Foster wall retire by rotation at the Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, wall offer themselves for re-election

John Rennocks, Roger Dye and Sir Andrew Foster each has a senice agreement with the Company, further detals of which are prowided
at page 29 in the remuneration report
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Directors’ interests
All directors” interests, including details of shareholdings, are set out in the remuneration report of the Board on pages 30 to 31

Substantial shareholdings
At 7th Apnl 2008 the Company had been notified of the following interests of 3% or more in its ordinary share caprtal

Percentage of

Number issued
Shareholder of shares share capital
Schroder Investment Management 24,129,003 2138
Aberforth Partners 20,694,469 18 34
UBS 8,574,290 759
Gartmore Investment Management 8,422,324 7 46
JO Hambro Capital Management 6,575,792 583
Legal & General Investment Managernent 5.703,337 505
SG Asset Management 5,417,564 480

Details of the authonsed and 1ssued share capital of the Company dunng the year ended 3 1st December 2007 are given In note 27 to the
financial statements

Charitable and political donations
No political donations were made duning the year (2006 £nil) No chartable donations were made in the year (2006 £nit)

Financial instruments
Note 24 to the financial statements contains disdosure on financial Instruments

Strategy
The business strategy adopted by the directors 1s to continue to focus on the Social Care and Pnmary Care businesses, and i particular to

+  Continue to win new contracts with Local Authonties, Pnmary Care Trusts, Police Authonties and secure institutions, and
*  Explore opporturities to provide additional services to existing and new customers

Key performance indicators
When monitoring the performance of the Group and of the indivdual businesses within it, the directors continue to review several key
perfarmance ndicators (KPis) The more important ones used are

Applicable across the whole Group
Revenue
Operating profit
Debtor days

Applicable to the Social Care business
Volume - hours
Commission per hour
Gross profit
Gross profit per hour
Average number of care workers paid per week
Average hours per care worker paid per week
Ratio of care worker hours to branch staff hours

Applicable to the Pnmary Care business
Doctor pay
Nurse pay
Other operating costs
Cost per doctor hour
Ratio of doctors to nurses
Cost per doctor visit and per nurse visit
Consultations per doctor hour
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Directors’ report continued

Actual KPis at the Group level were as follows

Year to 315t Decernber 2007 Year to 315t Cecember 2006
Revenue £179,600,000 £172,600,000
Operating profit £13,100,000 £18,600,000
Debtor days 43 37

Risk factors

The directors consider that the Group's business, financial condition andfor results of operations could be materally affected by a number

of risks relating either to the business of the Group or more general risks, as follows

¢ Cutsin government spending may have a matenal adverse effect,

¢ That part of Pnmary Care’s revenue that 1s denved from Pamary Care Trusts 15 subject to nsks relating to carmang out business
with them,

» That part of Socal Care's revenue that 15 denved from the social senaces departments of Local Authorties is subject to nisks relating
to canmying out business with such departments,

¢ The Pamary Care business is dependent on its ability to recruit and retain surtably qualified doctors and other medicat professionals,

¢ The Group could be at nsk of being found deficient in recruitment standards required by regulators and the Group’s customners,

* The Group operates a branch network and 15 dependent on exerting proper centralised management over its branches,

* Increased use of technology in people’s own homes may lead to a decrease in the requirement for the Group’s services,

*  Any necessary increase in employer contrbutions to the Group's pension schemes or a llability to make good the deficrts in the
schemes may have an adverse impact on the Group’s financal condition, and

¢ Competition for the Group's services may increase and may limit the ability of the Group in future to mantain market share or
revenue levels The main barriers to entry In the Group’s businesses are (i) ngorous quality assurance standards, regulations and
inspections, and (n) business awarded under contracts in relation to which the tendenng process 1s costly and ngorous

Disabled employees
It 15 the Groups poiicy that disabled persons should be considered for employment, traning, career development and promaotion on
the basis of therr abilities and aptitudes in common wath all employees

The Group applies employment policies that are fair and equitable for all employees and which ensure that entry Into and progression
within the Group are determined solely by application of job cntena and personal ability and competency

Full and fair consideration (having regard to the person’s particular aptitudes and abilites) 1s given to applications for employment and
the career development of disabled persons The Group training and development policies make it dlear that the Group will take all
steps practicable to ensure that employees who become disabled dunng the trme they are employed by the Group are able to continue
to perform their duties

Employee involvement

The Group attaches considerable importance to ensunng that all its employees are provided with informiation concerning them as
ernployees, particularly the economic and financial factors affecting the Group’s perfermance and the market n which the Group
operates Involvemnent of ernployees in the Group's performance 15 also encouraged by the avalability of performance-related bonuses
as well as share option schemes, which are descnbed in more detail elsewhere in this report

Internal circulars and newsletters are issued on a monthly basis and consultation between management and staff is an ongoing process
Employees are consulted on 1ssues directly affecting them wherever practicable Further details of the Group’s policies and practices
relating to employee ivolvernent may be found on pages 14 and 15 of this report

Credrtor payment policy

It 1s the Group’s policy to have appropnate terms and conditions for transactions with suppliers, ranging from standard terms and
condrtions to those which have been specifically negotiated, and that in the absence of dispute, payment will be made in accerdance
with those terms and condiions and conforming to the €BI Code of Best Practice, copies are avatlable from the CBI at Centrepaint,
103 New Oxford Street, London WC1 At 31st December 2007 trade creditors represented 10 days’ purchases 2006 15 days)

The directors’ reports of the Group’s UK operating companies give information about their credrtor payment policies as required by
the Companies Act The Company, as a holding company, does not itself make any relevant payments in this respect
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Auditors

Dunng the year PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP resigned as auditors to the Company, following which BDO Sicy Hayward LLP were
appointed to fill the casual vacancy ansing

A resclution propostng the appointment of BDO Stoy Hayward LLP, Chartered Accountants, as auditors to the Company and authonsing
the Audit Committee of the Board to determine their reruneration will be put to the Annual General Meeting

Directors’ responsibilities to the auditors regarding the financial statements

Each person who 1s a director at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirms that

* Sofar as the director 15 aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor s unaware, and

* Each director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director to make himself or herself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor s aware of that information

Approved by the Board on 10th Apnl 2008 and signed on 1ts behalf by

Dawid Collison

Group Company Secretary W d% (

Nestor Healthcare Group plc IQ’L.‘
Registered number 1592981

Registered office Allen House, Station Road, Egham, Surrey TW20 9NT
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Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ime the financial
position of the Company, for safeguarding the assets of the Company, for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularties and for the preparation of a directors’ report and directars’ remuneration repaort which comply with the
requiremenits of the Companies Act 1985

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial staterments in accordance with the Compariies Act 1985
The directors are also reguired to prepare financial staternents for the Group In accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union {IFRS) and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation The directors have chosen to prepare financal
statements for the Company in accordance wath IFRS

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that finangial statements present fairly for each financial year the Company’s financial
position, financial performance and cash flows This requires the fathful representation of the effects of transactions, other events and
condrtions In accordance with the definitions and recognition antena for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in the International
Accounting Standards Board's ‘Framework for the preparation and presentation of financial statements’ In virtually ali arcumstances, a
far presentation will be achieved by compliance with all applicable IFRS A far presentation alse reguires the drectors to
e Consistently select and apply appropniate accounting policies,
»  Present mformation, Including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable anc understandable
information, and
* Provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements i IFRS 1s insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s finanaial position and finanaal performance

Financial statements are published on the Group's website In accordance wath legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissermination of financial statements, which may vary from legislation in other junsdictons The maintenance and integnty of the Group's
website 15 the responsibility of the directors The directors' responsibility also extends to the ongong ntegnity of the finanoal statements
contained therein
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Remuneration report

In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Board 15 pleased to present its remuneration report for the year ended 315t December 2007
This remuneration report has been prepared by the Remuneration Committee in accordance with the aforementioned regulations
An ordinary resolution to approve the remuneration report wall be proposed at the Annual General Meeting on 20th June 2008 The
vote will have an adwsory status only and wall be in respect of the remuneration policy and overall remuneration packages generally
and waill not be specific to indmvidual levels of remuneration

BDO Stoy Hayward LLP have audited the sections headed directors’ emoluments, directors’ pensions and directors” interests to the extent
required by the regulations

Remuneration Committee

During the year, the Board delegated its powers to determine the Group's remuneration policy for senior executives, ncluding executive
directors, to the Remuneration Committee (“the Committee”), the members of which duning the year were Sir Andrew Foster (Chairman),
Ingnd Alexander {until her resignation on 2nd March 2007), Roger Dye, all of whom were regarded by the Board as independent non-
executive directors, and John Rennocks iwhao was regarded by the Board as being independent within the meaning of the Code, on the
date of his appointment) The Board has retained responsibility for seting the rermuneration of the Company’s Chairman since he
cumently serves as a member of the Committee

The terms of reference of the Committee may be found on the Company’s website Further details relating to the Commuttee may be
found on page 33 of this report

In deterrrining its pelicy, the Committee has paid regard to the pnnaples and provisions of good governance contained in the Code on
Corporate Governance published in June 2006 {“the Code™) and to the Directors’ Remuneration Regulations 2002 It has also recaved
advice on executive remuneraticn from New Bndge Street Consultants LLP ("NBSC ™), which duning the year was retained by the
Committee as its regular adwvisor A copy of a statement relating to the terms on which NBSC 15 engaged by the Committee 5 avalable
on the Company’s website The Committee has also received assistance from Stephen Booty, the Group’s Chief Executive and Deirdre
Saliba from the Group’s Human Resources function and wha 1s Secretary to the Cormmittee, both of whom attended meetings of the
Commuttee as required but not in respect of matters relating directly to their own remuneraton

The Company has also mstructed NBSC 10 adwise 1t on certain ad hoc matters dunng the year, for example in relation to the
administration of the Company's share schemes

Remuneration policy

The Commuttee’s overall aim 1s to prowde a package of remuneratron which

« Issufficient but no more than 1s necessary to attract, retain and motivate all of the Group's most senior management, including
executive directors,

* Rewards good performance with remuneration that 1s n line with that payable in broadly comparable businesses, and

* Rewards exceptional performance in such a way as to align the executives’ interests with those of the shareholders

To that end, the Committee structures executive remuneration In two distinct parts fixed remuneration of basic salary and benefits and
vanable performance-related remuneration, in the form of a cash bonus and long-term incentives Remuneration is structured so that the
vanable pay element forms a significant portion of each director's package During the year the remuneration pohcy was unchanged from
that applying in 2006

Basic salary and benefits

Basic salary 15 determined by reference to the responsiilities and performance of the indvidual directors duning the year, taking into
account expenence and the rates of basic pay for smilar roles in comparable companies The Committee’s overall aim 1s to ensure that
the basic salary paid to the Group's senior executives Is broadly in ine with the median of that paid by comparable businesses (generally
companies in the FTSE 350 Index), having particular regard to therr size and complexity Salanes are reviewed annually, normally in November
or December of each year, with any adjustments usually taking effect from 1st January in the following year, although in 2008 the review
was deferred for three months It 15 the Commuittee’s practice to undertake formal market benchmarking of directors’ and sermor
exacutives’ salanes, with the assistance of NBSC, every two years Executwe directors’ basic salanes were not increased in 2007 and
therefore still ranged from £203,000 to £312,000, as in 2006 The Group addrtionally provides a range of benefits to executive directors,
the most significant of which are a car cash allowance and pension benefits (full details of which are set out below)

Cash bonus

Each year, the Committee sets stretching bonus targets for each executive directar, aiming to achieve a balance between short- and
medium-term objectves In 2007 and 2008, targets comprise overall Group performance critena relating to prefit before tax, which
s considered to be the most appropnate financial target No bonus 1s payable if the relevant financial targets are not met None were
aither earned or paid in 2007

The maxamurn such annual bonus payable to executive directors 15 80% of salary Bonuses are nat pensionable
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Remuneration report continued

Long-term incentives

The Group cumrently operates three long-term incentive schemes, the Nestor Healthcare Group Share Option Plan 2002 (“the 2002
Plan”), the Long-term Incentive Plan {the “LTIP"), both of which were adopted following approval by shareholders in 2002, and the
Performance Share Plan (the “PSP”) which was adopted following approval by shareholders in 2006 In proposing the schemnes, the
Committee took extensive advice from NBSC, sought and obtamed the prior approval of a number of the Company’s largest shareholders
and complied with prevailing best practice relating to such arrangements

The Committee believes that share ownership by senior executives s an effective means of rewarding superior performance, since the
interests of management and sharehclders are thereby aligned The Committee further believes that the provision of share schemes to the
Group’s managers should be structured in such a way as to encourage them to achieve the Group's long-term ams and that the Group's
most senior managers, iIncluding executive directors, should be rewarded for exceptional performance with potentially significant rewards

Once options have been exercised no restrictions are placed on future retention or disposal

1 The 2002 Plan

Pror to 2006 1t was generally the Group’s policy to grant share options regularly, on a tiered basss, to a broad range of middle and
senior management, Including executve directors Generally (though not in every year) options were granted annually to executive
directors, to a value equivalent to one times salary, although in exceptional cases, where a key executive joined the Group, a higher lirnit
was sometimes applied In other years, a lower imit had also been applied In 2005, 1,559,057 share options were granted under the
2002 Plan, but none in erther 2006 or 2007

“Normal” options
For “normal” options granted to the Group’s most senior executives, induding all executive directars, a range of normahsed earnings per
share ("EPS") performance targets applies to grants as shown below

Average growth required in EPS

1st third of an option RPl + 5% pa
2nd third of an option RPI + 6% pa
Final third of an option RPI + 10% pa

In all cases, performance is tested over a three-year penod Since January 2004, the Commuittee has resclved that there will be no
opportunities to re-test performance for grants made after that date

EPS was chosen as the relevant benchmark for the measurement of the Group’s performance since the target requires substantial
improvement in underlying financiat perfermance before options may be exercsed This complements the requirement inherent in an
aption, which Is to grow the share price The range of EPS targets are considered to be appropriately stretching, generating higher
potential reward levels for higher levels of financial performance Alk awards granted in 2005 have lapsed as a result of the minmum
performance condrition measured over the required three-year penod to 31st December 2007 not having been achieved

“Super” options

In addrtion to “normal” options, the 2002 Flan also provides for the grant of “super” options to certain of the Group’s most sericr
managers, Including executive directors These options may be granted over shares worth up to one and a half times the indmdual’s
salary and the exercise of these opbons Is subject to the achievement of mare stretching targets than those prescribed by the Committee
in relation to “normal” options

Performance targets relating to “super” options invalve a companson of the Company’s total shareholder retum (“TSR”) with companies
in the FTSE Small Cap Index (excluding investment trusts) as at the date of grant, measured over a single three-year pencd from grant
Options are exerasable as set out below

Nestor's TSR ranking in group % of super options exercisable
Below 45th percentile 0%
45th percentile 40%
45th percentde to 25th percentile Sliding scale from 40% to 100%
25th percentile and above 100%

In addition to the TSR condition above, no element of the option 1s exercisable unless the Company’s EPS growth over the three-year
penod exceeds 5% per annum over RPI There I1s no opportunity to re-test performance

No options were granted in 2005, 2006 or 2007 under this scheme
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1 The LTIP

Under the LTIP, the executive directors who are eligible to partiapate (namely Stephen Booty and Martyn Ellis} were required to invest one
half of ther post-tax cash bonus In buying shares in the Company The investment 1s matched by the grant of matching awards

Matching awards waill normally only vest on the third anniversary of their grant if the participant 15 still in the Group’s employment, has
retained the shares purchased with the bonus and if specified performance targets are met The current performance target involves a
companson of the Company's TSR with comparues in the FTSE Small Cap Index (excluding investment trusts) as at the date of grant,
measured over a single three-year penod from grant Matching awards vest as set out below

Matching Ratio
Nestor's TSR ranking in group Chief Executve Other ehgible executive directors
Below 45th percentile 0 0
45th percentile 051 031
45th percentile to 10th percentile Skding scale from051t04 1 Shding scale from 03 1t0 251
10th percentile and above 41 251

In addition to the TSR condition above, none of the awards will vest if the Company's EPS growth does not exceed the growth in RPY by
an average of at least 5% per annum over the three year penod There 15 no opportunity to re-test performance

The Committee considered TSR to be a suitable performance measure for both the “super” options and the LTIP as it dearly aligns the
interests of shareholders and executives 1 also considers that the FTSE Small Cap Index 1s an appropnate benchmark as there are no
cther companies with a directly comparable business profile to the Company histed on the UK Stock Exchange TSR performance 1s
independently calculated for the Committee A chart showing the Company's TSR compared to the FTSE Small Cap Index over the
last five financial years 1s shown below

Parbioipation in the matching awards to date has been as follows

Amount

Share Share charged

price a1 phce at Lapsed Potenual against

Not:onally date of Notionally date of n 2005, interest in profitin

awarded In notional Lapsed awarded notional 2006 shares at 2007

2004 award (p) n 2004 n 2005 award (p) and 2007 311207 £000

Stephen Booty 33,108 1850 - 107,559 14875 {140,667) - -
Martyn Elis 22,297 1850 - 51,093 14875 (73,390) - -
Justin Jewnit 54,054 1850 (54,054) - - - - -
Stephen Page 15,589 1850 (15,589) - - - - -
Total directors 125,048 (69,643) 158,652 (214,057) - -

Earliest vesting dates for awards made in 2004 and 2005 were 7th Apni 2007 and 11th May 2008, respectively No awards were made in
2006 or 2007 and the Committee does not currently expect to 1ssue awards under this plan in 2008 or future years

The required EPS growth targets were not met in either 2006 or 2007 so all of the matching awards have now lapsed
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Remuneration report continued

i The Performance Share Plan

The PSP was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 27th Apnit 2006 It was then adopted by the Board and awards
made later on the same day Awards were made enttling directors and certain other senior managers to acquire shares in the Company,
with the awards normally vesting on the third anniversary of the grant (27th Apnil 2009) subject to continued employment and the
satisfaction of a TSR growth performance condition No consideration was payable for the grant of the awards and no consideration is
payable on vesting The share pnce at the time of the award was 128 00 pence

Following the nghis 1ssue of March 2007, the number of shares that were the object of the potential award made in Apnl 2006 has been
increased by a factor of 6 4274%, being the calaulated benus element of the nghts issue

A further award was made to directors and certain other senior managers on 26th March 2007, these awards also 1o vest normally on
the third annversary of the grant (26th March 20710} subject to the same prowisions As before, no consideration was payable for the
grant of the awards and no consideration 1s payable on vesting The share price at the time of this award was 159 85 pence

In normal arcumstances annual awards will be imrted to a potential value equivalent to a maximum of 100% of basic annual salary

The performance condition required to be met 1s that the Company’s TSR over the three-year penod from the date of the award must be
at least at the median of a ranking of the TSR of each of the members of a defined comparator group over the same penod, in which
case the award wall vest as follows

Nestor's TSR ranking in group % of award that vests
Upper quartile or above 100%
Between upper quartile and median Shding scale from 35% to 100%
Median 35%
Below median 0%

The comparator group comprises the constituent companies of the FTSE Small Cap Index, excluding investment trusts

Awards made on 26th March 2007 to directors were as follows

Maximum Amount

number charged

of shares aganst profit

awarded n 2007

n 2007 £000

Stephen Booty 195,182 53
Martyn Ellis 126,994 35
Total 322,176 88

SAYE S5cheme

The Group also operates a savings related share option scheme {“SAYE™), which provides a long-term savings opportunaty for all of the
Group’s employees, as well as encouraging them to partiopate in the success of the Group Participation 1s open to all permanent
employees who are able 10 make regular monthly sawngs Options are exercisable 1n normal arcumstances afier three or five years at a
pnce which s fixed at a discount of 20% from the average of the mid-market pnces for the five business daysimmediately preceding the
date on which invitations are made by the Committee In 2007 options over 280, 100 shares were 1ssued under this scheme, the exercse
pnce being 140 04 pence

Policy on the pensions of executive directors

Until 1t was closed to new entrants in April 2003, executive directors were able to join the Nestor Healthcare Group Retirement Benefits
Scheme {“the Scheme"), a funded, Inland Reverwe approved, final salary occupational pension scheme Pensions in the Scheme are
based on final salary {excluding bonuses) and length of pensionable serice The Company has also estabhshed an unapproved scheme
to provide additional death-in-sennce benefits to these directors in line wath their basic salanes

Under the Scherne, the normal retirement age of executive directors 1s 60 and the basic rate of accrual 15 1/50th

Since the Scheme was dosed to new entrants In April 2003, newly appointed emplayees, induding executive directors, are eligible to
join the Nestor Healthcare Group Personal Pension Plan (" GPP™), which 1s a defined contribution arrangement In respect of executive
directors, the Company makes contributions to the GPP at a rate up to a maximum of 20% of the director’s basic salary
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Executive directors’ contracts of service

Policy

It 1s the Committee’s policy only to offer contracts terminable on no more than 12 months’ notice to executive directors All currently
serving executive directors have contracts of employment terminable in all arcumstances on a maamum of 12 months' notice When
offenng contracts of employment to newly appointed executive directors, the Committee has regard to the broad pnnaiples outlined in
the ABI and NAPFS joint statement on Best Practice on Executive Contracts and Severance, including the drector’s duty to mitigate his

losses in the event of early termination of his contract

Speafic contractual details

Current executive directors

Termination provsions

Pay in lieu
of notice” Share Annual
Date of contract Notice perod dause options bonus.
Stephen Booty Jst February 2003 12 months’ notice from Company Note 1 Note 2 Note 3
Martyn Ellis 23rd May 2003 12 months” notice from Company Note 1 Note 2 Note 3
Notes

1 The Company may terminate the director's employment without notice, prowded it pays to him an amount equating to his salary,
benefits and emplayer’s pension contributions or credits hirn with an additional penod of pensionable service (as apphicable) for the
unexpired penad of notice due under the contract Martyn Ellis's contract permits the Company to pay any monies due on a monthly
basis and at rts discretion, to cease or reduce payments if he accepts suitable akernative employment

2 At the Board's discretion, the director may be entitled to retain any vested share options held under the Group's Share Option
Schemes for a penod of up to 12 months from termination He may also be entitled to exercise unvested share cptions early in
certan specified arcumstances subject to the Committee taking account of the performance of the Company and the length of

time elapsed since the grant date

3 Depending on the time of year at which his employment ceases, the director may be entitled to any bonus earned by him (but not
yet paid) for the previous year under the Group’s bonus scheme

On 7th Aprl 2008 the Company announced that Stephen Booty would be standing down as a director and as Chief Executive on
30th Apnl 2008 It 15 expecied that any pay in heu of notice or other compensation payable to him waill be in ing wath the provisions of

his contract of employment

Chairman and non-executive directors

The Board sets the fee levels for the Charman and non-executive directors Non-executive directors do not hold contracts of employment
but are offered letters of appointment for a fixed penod of three years, renewable annually thereafter by agreement Non-executive
directors do not participate in any of the Group’ annuat or long-term incentive arrangements, nor Is ther remuneration penstonable

Current non-executive directors

Date of letter of appointrment

Appointment term

Compensation In the event of
early termination of office

John Rennocks {Chatrman) 1st October 2003 1 year from 1st October 2007
Roger Dye 9th January 2004 1 year from 1st January 2008
Sir Andrew Foster 16th January 2004 1 year from 1st January 2008

3 months' fees
None
None

Ingnd Alexander resigned as a director on 2nd March 2007 No compensation for loss of office was payable
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Remuneration report continued

Directors’ emoluments

Pay in lieu

Performance of notice

Basic salary related Taxable induding

and fees bonuses benefits pensions} Total emoluments

2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Ingnd Alexander 5 - - - 5 29
Stephen Booty 312 - 120 - 432 634
Roger Dye 35 - - - 35 35
Martyn Elirs 203 - 13 - 216 321
Sir Andrew Foster 35 - - - 35 35
John Rennocks 82 - - - 82 90
Wiliam Holmes - - - - - 342
Total 2007 672 - 133 - 805 -
Total 2006 869 300 142 175 - 1,486

Notes

1 Benefits recevable consist pnmarily of company car allowance, car fuel and healthcare insurance

2 Induded in taxable benefits relating to Stephen Booty 1s a payment of £104,000 (2006 £104,000) representing compensation in

lieu of pension contnbution Induded in taxable benefits relating to Martyn Ellss 1s a payment of £rul (2006 £5,000) representing

compensation i lieu of pension contnbution

Ingnd Alexander resigned as a director on 2nd March 2007

Pay in lieu of notice of £175,000 payable in 2006 was paid to William Holmes who resigned as a director on 31st December 2006

5 The figures above represent emoluments earned as directors dunng the relevant financial year Alf were paid in the year that they
were earned

oW

Cirectors’ pensions
Defined benefit scheme

Increase

In accrued Transfer

pension Transfer Transfer value of the
Accrued per annum value of value of Increase Increase in
pension Increase dunng accrued accrued excuding transfer
perannum In accrued 2007 pension at pension at pnce value duning
at31st pension excuting 31st gt inflabion less 2007 less
December during price December December directars director’s
2007 2007 inflavon 2007 2006 contrbutrons contributions
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Stephen Booty 36 6 5 511 415 54 80

The transfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuanal advice in accordance with the Actuanzl Guidznce Note GN11
The above figures exdude any benefits denved from directors’ additional voluntary contnbutions

Defined contribution schemes
Employer contnbutions of £40,600 (2006 £35,280) were paid dunng the year to the GPP in respect of Martyn Elis

Directors’ interests
The beneficial and family interests of directors in the share capita! of the Company were

Ordinary shares Share options
Company plan 1996 Employee scheme 1996 Share option plan 2002 SAYE scheme
311207 311206 311207 311206 311207 3112086 311207 311206 311207 311206

Stephen Booty 94,731°  73,680° 5868 5514 25,433 23,807 341,993 321,340° - 6,014
Roger Dye - - - - - - - - - -
Martyn Ellis 22,268°  17,320¢ - - - - 205436 193030 - -

Sir Andrew Foster - - - - - . - - -~ -
John Rennocks 6,294 4,896 - - - - - - - -
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Notes

1 None of the directors has any non-beneficial interest in the Company's share capital

2 No director was matenally interested in any contract of significance {apart from contracts of senvce or for senaces) with any

Group company during or at the end of the financial year

Included in Stephen Booty’s ordinary shareholding 15 a total of 20,398 shares held under the LTIP (2006 23,680)

Included n Martyn Ellis's ardinary shareholding 1s a total of 15,503 shares held under the LTIP (2006 17,320)

120,200 options granted to Stephen Booty under the 2002 Plan in 2002 are “Super Options”

All directors who owned ordinary shares in the Company and were eligible ta participate in the nights 1ssue announced on

24th January 2007 subscribed in full for their nghts The increases in shareholdings between 3 1st Decernber 2006 and

315t December 2007 disclosed in the above table reflect those subsenptions

7 The number of optiens in issue under all schemes that had been 1ssued m 2006 and earlier years have been increased by a factor
of 6 4274% being an amount equivalent to the bonus element of the March 2007 nghts issue

v bW

Detatls of share options held by the directors, indluding William Holmes who resigned on 31st December 2008, during the year were

Scheme AL 31st At 315t Date
(see Decernber  Adjustment December txerase  from which Expiry
below) 2006 of 64274% Exerased Lapsed 2007 price exerasable date
Stephen Booty 1 23,897 1,536 - - 25433 51115p Apr ‘05 Apr2
2 5514 354 - - 5868 51115p Apr'05 Apr12
3 6,014 - - {6,014} - 14763p Jun ‘06 Nov ‘06
4 12,00C 771 - - 12771 28282p  Nov'06  Nov'13
4 196,399 12,623 - - 209,022 14353p Jan '08 Jan "5
5 112,941 7,259 - - 120,200 199 67p Oct '05 Oct"12
Martyn Ellis 4 64,716 4,159 - - 68,875 25698p Jun ‘06 Jun13
4 128314 8,247 - - 136,561 143 53p lan '08 Jan*15
Willam Holmes 1 43,137 - - {43.137) - 47920p Oct ‘04 Oct’11
2 5,882 - - {5,882} -  47920p Oct '04 Oct’' 11
3 13,638 - - (13,638 - 11384p Jun 10 Nov'10
4 58,823 - - (58,823) - 19967p Oct ‘05 Oct12
4 12,000 - - (12,000} - 28282p Nov'06  Nov’13
4 104,746 - {66,897) (37,849) - 14353p lan 07 Jan 15

Schemes

1 Employee Share Option Scherme 1996 Options, performance target — EPS growth of RPI plus 5% per annum
2 Company Share Option Plan 1996 Options, performance target — EPS growth of RPI plus 5% per annum

3 SAYE Scheme QOptions

4 The 2002 Plan - “Normal Gption”

5 The 2002 Plan — “Super Option”

Notes

1 There s no cost to the employee for the receipt of options under the Employee Share Option Scheme 1996, Company Share
Option Plan 1996 er the 2002 Plan Deductions from earnings are made in respect of SAYE options

2 Employee Share Option Scheme 1996, Company Share Option Plan 1996 and the 2002 Plan option prices are fixed at the
mid-market pnce on the business day preceding the date of grant

3 SAYE Scheme options are fixed at a discount of 20% from the average of the mid-market prices for the five business days
immediately before the date of mvitation

4  The mid-market pnce at 315t December 2007 was 48 00 pence and the range duning the year was 28 75 pence to 194 00 pence

5 66,897 options granted under the 2002 Plan — "Normal Option” in January 2005 were exercised by Willlam Holmes on 15th June
2007 at a price of 143 53 pence following his resignation from the Company

External appointments

All executive directors are required to seek the consent of the Board before accepting external appointments as non-executive directors of
companies outside the Group None of the executive directors 1s currently a director of a company outside the Group or received a fee In
respect of such a position dunng the year to 31st December 2007

On behalf of the Board

Sir Andrew Foster
Chairman, Remuneration Committee

10th April 2008
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Corporate governance

Introduction

The Company and Group complied throughout the year with the provisions set out in the Combined Code published by the UK Financial
Reporting Council in fune 2006 {"the Code ") except where inchcated in this statement

The manner in which the Company applies the pnnaples of good governance contained in the Code 1s described i the appropnate parts
of this Annual Report Thus the application by the Company of the Code’s pnnaples to remuneration matters at pages 25 to 31 should
be read In conjunction with the statement below

The Beard

The Board of directors leads and controls the Company by holding at least eight meetings a year at which its current and forecast
performance are exarmined Regular reports on monthly performance and other matters of mpartance to the Company and Group ensure
that the Board 1s supphied in a imely manner with the information necessary to make an informed judgement In addition, the Board
holds regular meetings to discuss and devise the Group’s mediurn- and long-term strategic focus and management development strategy
Regular informal presentations are given and meetings held in order to advise directors of issues of Importance affecting the Group

In accordance with the provisions of rts Articles of Assoaatton and with the Code, each director 15 subject to re-election by the Company’s
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting immediately following appomtment and at least every three years thereafter

The Board has a Schedule of Matters specifically reserved to it for deasion and has approved the wntten terms of reference for the various
committees to which it has delegated its authcnty in certain matters The Schedule makes it clear that all directars have access to the
adwvice and services of the Company Secretary and establishes a procedure for all directors to take independent adwice, If necessary, at

the Company’s expense Matters reserved to the Board indude the recommendation or approval of dvdends, the approval of final and
intenm financial statements, major financial commitments, the acquisition of companies or businesses, appointments to the Board and

Its committees, the Group's future strategy and the Group's internal controls This Schedule 15 kept under regular review

Dunng the year, the Board was led by John Rennocks, the non-executive Chairman He also served as a member of the Board's
Normination, Audit and Remuneration Committees

The Charman’s responsibilities are clearly defined in a wntten specification agreed by the Board prior to his appontrnent in 2003 They
include the smaooth running of the Board, effectve communication between executive and non-executive directors and the general progress
and long-term development of the Group His other significant commitments were disdosed to the Board pnor to his appointment

The day-to-day running of the business of the Company and Group was delegated throughout the year to an executive team of two
executive directors being Stephen Booty, Chief Executive and Martyn Ellis, Finance Director

During the year, iIndependent non-executive directors with extensive business, finance, health and social care backgrounds provided the
Board with a breadth of expenence and with independent judgement Roger Dye and Sir Andrew Foster served throughout the year,
with Sir Andrew Foster being nominated as the senior ndependent non-executive director Ingnd Alexander, CBE, also served as a
non-executive director until her resignation whuch tock effect from 2nd March 2007

Having reviewed the Code, the Board considers that its present membershup, comprising two independent non-executive directors, two
executive directors and the Chairman, 1s appropnate, with a balance of skills and expenence appropnate for the requirements of the
business This recognises that in John Rennocks, the Board has a Chairman who remains de facto “independent” (having met the critena
of independence referred to in Provision A 3 1 of the Code on his appointment in October 2003) It also considers that the Board's
pelices and procedures are of sufficient strength 1o ensure that the performance and proceedings of the Company and Group are
effectively challenged and controlled

The Board actively encourages all directors to deepen therr knowledge of their roles and responsibilities and to gain a clear understanding
of the Group and the ervironment in which it operates Newly appointed Board members undergo an induction programme and have
receved the opporturity for formal traning in 2007 the non-executive directors receved the apportunity to meet with various members
of the Group's management teams on several occasions Further traming for directors s available and offered as appropnate

The Board has adopted a formal process for reviewing its own effectiveness and that of its indmdual members In addition, regular
meetings of the non-executive directars are held without the executive directars, and at least once a year, without the Chairman present,
In order to evaluate his performance This process and policy have been in place throughout 2007 A formal review by the Board of 1its
own effectiveness tock place in 2007, combined with assessments of indvidual directors and assessments by the non-executive directors
of the Chairman’s performance

All non-executive directors meet the cntena of independence as laid down in Provision A 3 1 of the Code with the exception of John
Rennocks who met all of the critena of independence on appointrnent and whomn the Board currently regards de facto independent for
this reason, he remains a member of each of the Board's Nomination, Audit and Remuneration Committees However, the Board intends
to keep this under review

Committees

The Board operates three committees, consisting wholly of non-executive directors to which 1t has delegated certain specific responsibilities
and each of which has formally adopied terms of reference These compnse the Nomination, Audit and Remuneration Committees
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee, which makes recornmendations to the Board on the appontment of directors, 1s chaired by *ohn Rennocks
The Committee draws on the advice of such professional adwisors as it considers necessary

In 2007 the Committee comprised John Rennacks, Ingnd Alexander (until her resignation in Marchy, Roger Dye and Sir Andrew Foster
The terms of reference of the Normination Commiitee are regularly reviewed by the Board

No additions to the composition of the Board were made or contemplated dunng the year, so no meetings of the Normination Committee
were In practice required

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee 1s chaired by Roger Dye, a chartered accountant and Chief Executve of the Daws Serice Group Pl it compnises
the non-executive directors together with the Charrman John Rennocks

In 2007 the other members of the Committee were Ingnd Alexander {until her resignation in March) and Sir Andrew Foster [ts terms of
reference are regularly reviewed by the Board

The Commuttee met three times dunng the year to review the preliminary full year results announcernent and the Annual Report for the
year ended 31st December 2006 and interim results for the six months ended 30th June 2007 before they were presented to the Board,
to receve reports from the external auditors and to make recommendations to the Board on accounting policies 1ts primary duties
include the monitonng, on behalf of the Board, of compliance with, and the effectiveness of, the Groups accounting and internal control
systems The Commuttee’s duties also include monitoring the scope and results of the Group’s annual audit and the independence,
general performance and objectivity of its auditors Having previously agreed and implemented a procedure for revewing and assessing
its own effectiveness, the Committee carned out such a review In the year From time to time the Chairman of the Committee also meets
informally with the auditors

In 2007 the Audit Committee, In accordance wath its duties, made a recormmendation to the Board on the appaintment of external
auditors That recommendation, which was accepted by the Board, was to appont BDO Stoy Hayward LLPinstead of the outgaing auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP The Audt Commitee has in addition approved their remuneration and terms of engagement A resolution 1s
to be put to the Annual General Meeting to seek shareholder approval for the appointment of BDO Stoy Hayward LLP until the next general
meeting and to authonse the Audit Committee to determine their remuneration The Audit Committee 1s pleased wath the contnibution
made to date by the new audrtars, and looks forward to a strong working refatianship with them in the years to come

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities include determining the Group's overall remuneration strategy and the remuneration
packages of the executive directors and other senior executives, after having consulted wath the Chief Executive and having recerved
professional advice from remuneration consuttants and the Group’s Human Resources senior management The Committee 15 also responsible
for approving the grant and exercise of executive long-term incentive arangements In determiming remuneration policy, the Committee 1s
free to obtan such professional adwice as 1t sees fit, and regularly monitors both the polices of comparater companies and current market
practice, in order to ensure that the packages prowded are sufficient to attract and retain executive directors of the necessary quality

The remuneration of non-executive directors, iInduding the Chairman, 1s a matter for the Company’s Board and the Committee’s terms of
reference make 1t clear that the framewark for the remuneration of the Group’s senior executives (including executive directors) must be
agreed by the Board as a whole

The terms of reference of the Committee are regularly reviewed by the Board
The Commuttee met three times in the year

Sir Andrew Foster acted as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee throughout the year In 2007 the other members of the Committee
were Ingnd Alexander (until her resignation in March), Roger Dye and dohn Rennocks, who 1s currently considered by the Board to be

“de facte” independent and whose membershup 15 therefore appropnate, although this 1s subject to ongoing review The remuneration
report prepared by the Remuneration Comrmittee 15 set out in the Annual Report and disdoses the remuneration policy of the Company
and the remuneration of the directors

Short biographies of each of the directors, Induding their membership of the Board's committees outhned above, may be found on page 19

Attendance at meetings

Roger Dye, Ingnid Alexander, Stephen Booty and Martyn Ellis attended afl those Board and Committee meetings which they were entitlied
toattend John Rennocks attended all of the Board meetings and Remuneration Committee maetings and two out of the three Audit
Committee meetings Sir Andrew Foster attended all of the Remuneration Committee meetings, seven out of the exght Board meetings
and two out of the three Audit Comrmittee meetings

The Board, on behalf of the Company and Group, recognises the need to mantain an active dialogue with its shareholders The
Chief Executive and Finance Director meet regularty wath institutional investors and analysts to discuss the Group's performance and
all shareholders have access to the serior non-executive director, who 1s available to discuss any questions which investors may have
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Corporate governance continued

i relation to the runring of the Group They also have access to the Chairman if they so require, In 2007 several such meetings took
place The Board encourages shareholders to attend the Annual General Meeting and 1s atways willing to answer questionss, erther in the
meeting itself or, more informally, afterwards In additon, shareholders may contact the Company direct, erther through its website or
by telephoning its offices on 01784 221600

The Board also recognises the need to ensure that all directors are fully aware of the views of major shareholders about the Group Copies
of all analysts’ research relating to the Group are arculated 1o all directors upon publication, monthly analyses of the shareholder register
are made available to the Board and written feedback from shareholders and analysts, prepared by the Company’s brokers and public
relations advisors, 1s provided to all directors after every significant corporate event and at least twice a year

Going concern
The directors confirm that, after reviewing the financial position and cash flows of the Group and of the Company, they have a reasonable

expectation that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
For this reason, they continue to adopt the gomng concern basis in prepanng the accounts

Internal controls

As required by the UK Listing Authority, the Company and the Group have complied throughout the year wath the provisions of the Code
relating to internal condrols, hawing implemented the procedures necessary to comply with the guidance issued in September 1999 {the
Tumnbull Committee Report) and to report in ine with that guidance

The Board 15 responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness Such a system s designed to
manage rather than eliminate the nsk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against matenal misstatement or loss

The directors first adopted a rewised comprehensive process for managing, evaluating and reporting on significant nisks faced by the Group
m 1999 This process has been constantly reviewed and rewsed in subsequent years, induding 2007 The revised (and further refined and
extended) process has been in place for the whole of 2007 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts

The key elements of the system operated by the Group to identify, evaluate and manage significant nisks indude the following

* The Group's management operates a formal process for identifying, managing and reporting on operational, dinscal and financial
nsks faced by each of the Group's businesses, whereby each of the nsks identified 18 reviewed in detal by the executive directors on
a sem-annual basis Semor management team review meetings are held on at least a monthly basis at which the Group’s business
managers and executive tearn members report on the progress of the companies or disaipline for which they are responsible and
share best practice The formal process for identifying disciphne-specific nsks across the Group's operations encompasses financial, IT,
human rescurces, legal, property and clinical isks A mechanism also exsts to extend the Group's formal nsk management processes
to any significant new business acquired or begun by the Group immediately upon acquistion or start-up In this way, the Board 1s
able to confirm that the necessary process has been operated by the Group for the whole of 2007

*  The Audit Committee of the Board reviews a register compiled by the managing director of each of the Group’s businesses and registers
compiled by certain members of the Group’s senior management team, summansing the significant nsks faced by the businesses or the
Group as a whole, the likelihood of those nsks accurring and the steps being taken to mimmise or otherwise manage those nsks

* In 2004, the Board took steps to better align its nsk management processes with the operational imperatvas of the businesses by
adopting a dynamic nsk-management process that assists the Group’s operational management to identify developing trends at an
early stage Thrs has been used throughout 2007

As required by the Turnbull Guidance, the Board has carned out an annual assessment of the effectiveness of the system of internal

controls The processes applied by the Board include

* Attheend of the year, the managing directors of each of the Group's businesses, including the Group's comorate resource, are required
to complete and sign a register of the key financial and operational nsks facing the business for which they are responsible and to confirm
that they have complied throughout the year with the Group's poliaes and procedures on nsk managerent From these registers, a report
identifying the key nsks faced by the Group 1s compiled and signed by the Chief Executive, Finance Director and Company Secretary,
who are also required to confirm their comphance with such procedures and policies This report and the annual compliance statements
of each of the managing directors are reviewed by the Board before the Annual Report and Accounts are approved

*  Ateach meeting the Audit Committee reviews reports of the senior management team, internal and extemal auditors, on any Issues
identified as having a potentially substantial impact on the results of the Group, or areas of control weakness

¢ The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Group's system of managing financial nsk and refers any nsks it considers
significant to the Board for its consideration

s Atleast twice a year, the Audit Commuttee reviews the work plans and results of the external auditors

* The Audit Commuttee Chairman reports the outcorme of all Audit Committee meetings to the Board, which also receives rinutes of
all such meetings

An internal audit function does not currently exist within the Group The Audit Commuttee are satisfied that this 1s appropnate but intend
to keep it under regular review

The Group operates two comprehensive whistleblowing policies, i respect of dlinical issues and general operatonal and financial matters
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Auditors’ report

Report to the shareholders of Nestor Healthcare Group plc

Independent auditors’ report to the shareholders of Nestor Healthcare Group plc

We have audrted the Group and Company financal statements {the “financiat statements”) of Nestor Healthcare Group plc for the year
ended 31st December 2007 which comprise the Group Income statement, the Group and Company balance sheets, the Group and
Cormpany statements of recognised income and expense, the Group and Company cash flow statements and the related notes These
financial statemenits have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

We have also audited the information in the directors’ remuneration report that 1s described as having been audited

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the Annual Report, the directors’ remuneration repert and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS} as adopted by the European Union are set out in the statement of
directors’ responsibilities

Our respansibility 1s to audit the financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and international Standards an Auditing (UK and Ireland}

W report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial statements and the part
of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited have been property prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and whether, In
addrtion, the Group financial statements have been property prepared in accordance wath Article 4 of the I1AS Regulation We also report to you
whether, in our cpinion, the information given In the directors’ report 1s consistent wath the financial staterments In addition we report to you if, n
our opinicn, the Company has not kept proper accaunting records, 1f we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our
audit, or if nformation specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disdosed

We review whether the corporate governance staterment reflects the Company’s compliance with the nine provisiens of the 2006 Combined
Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report «f 1t dees not ‘We are not reguired to
consider whether the Board's statements on internal control cover all risks and contrals, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s comporate governance procedures or its nisk and control procedures

We read cther informaticn contaned in the Annual Report and consider whether it s consistent with the audited financial statements
This other information compnses only the directors’ report, the unaudited part of the directors’ remuneration report, the Charman’s
staternent, the operating and financial reviews and the corporate governance statement We consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstaternents or matenial inconsistencies with the financizl statements Our responsibilities do not extend
to any other information

Qur report has been prepared pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose No person is entitled to
rely on this report unless such a person 1s a person entitied to rely upon this report by virtue of and for the purpose of the Companies Act
1985 or has been expressly authonsed to do so by our pnor wntten consent Save as above, we do not accept responsibility for this report
to any other person or for any other purpose and we hereby expressly disclam any and all such hability

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board
An audit ncludes exarmination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the finanaal statements and the part
cf the directors’ remuneration report to be audited It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Groupy's and
Company’s crcumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to prowde
us wath sufficient evdence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statemenits and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be
audrted are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other ivegulanty or error In forming cur opirion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of infarmation in the financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneraticn report to be audited

Opinion

In our opinion

* The Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the
Group's affairs as at 31st December 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended,

*  The Group financal statements have been propery prepared in accordance with the Comparies Act 1985 and Artide 4 of the IAS Regulation,

* The Company financial staterments give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the Eurepean Union as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31st December 2007,

¢ The Company financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited have been properly prepared In
accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

* The nformation gven in the directors’ report 1s consistent with the finanaal staterments

BDO Stoy Hayward LLP Charterad Accountants and Registered Auditors, Hatfield g O’() %{ ( /b(\[w d ) (

10th Apnil 2008
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Group ncome statement
for the year ended 31st December 2007

2007 2006
Motes £000 £000
Continuing cperations
Revenue 3 179,623 172,640
Cost of sales (116,681} (112,682)
Gross profit 62,942 59,958
Administrative expenses (49,794) {41,352)
Operating profit 3 13,148 18,606
Finance income 5 213 21
Finance expense 5 (4,447) (4,831)
Profit before taxation 8,914 13,796
Tax expense 6 {3,085) (4,227)
Profit after tax for the year from continuing operations 5,829 9,569
Discontinued operations
Loss after tax for the year from discontinued operations 17 - (26,450)
Profit/{loss) for the year 5,829 (10,881)
Profit attnbutable to minenty interests 30 - 24
ProfitAloss) attnbutable to equity shareholders of the Company 5,829 {10,905)
Profit/(loss) for the year 5,829 {10,881)
Earmings/(loss) per share
Basic 9 539p (11 69p)
Diluted 9 538p (11 69p)
Earnings per share - continuing operations
Basic 9 539p 10 26p
Diluted 9 538p 10 26p
Equity dividends 8 (3.382) (2,629
Dividends per share 8 300p 3 00p
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Group and Company balance sheets
as at 31st December 2007

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006

Notes £000 £000 £ 000 £000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 10 97,191 84,369 - -
Other intangible assets 11 485 408 - -
Property, plant and equipment 12 3,558 3,647 - -
Deferred tax assets 18 2,964 5,710 - —
Investments 14 - - 188,245 188,267
Non-current assets 104,198 94,134 188,245 188,267
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 19 29,611 28,031 16,824 7,726
Current tax asset 71 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 22 536 82 333 -
Current assets 30,218 28,123 17,157 7,726
Current liabilities
Borrowings — overdrafts 22 (4,504) (6,790} - -
Derwvative finanaal instruments 23 (421) - (a21) -
Trade and other payables 20 {19,501) (18,314) (913) -
Current tax habilities 20 - {509) - -
Employment benefit liabilities 25 (3,122) (1,978) - -
Property provisions 25 (1,091) (1,020) - -
Current habilities (28,639) (28,611) {1,333) -
Net current assets/(liabilities) 1.579 {488) 15,823 7,726
Total assets less current habilities 105,777 93,646 204,068 195,993
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings - loans 22 (54,000) {(70,000) (54,000) {70,000}
Employment benefit habiliies 25 (3,250) (10,012) - -
Property provisions 25 (1.279) (1,719) - -
Non-current habilities (58,529) (8%,731) (54,000) {70,000}
Net assets 47,248 11,915 150,068 125,993
Eguity
Called up share capital 27 11,284 8763 11,284 8,763
Share premium account 28 71,439 43,225 71,439 43,225
Share payment reserve 28 931 951 931 951
Qther reserves 28 864 864 25,750 25,750
Retained (lossesyearnings 28 (37,270) {41,888) 40,664 47,304
Equity sharehclders’ funds 47,248 11,915 150,068 125,993

The notes an pages 39 to 76 form an integral part of these financial statements
The finanaal statements on pages 36 to 76 were approved by the Board on 10th April 2008 and were signed on its behalf by
J L Rennocks

M AEls
\- /
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Group statement of recognised income and expense
for the year ended 31st December 2007

2007 2006
Notes £000 £000
Profit/loss) for the year 5,829 {10,881)
Actuanal gains ansing in defined benefit pension schemes 35 3.267 3,402
Deferred taxation ansing on actuarial gans (915) (1,020)
Adjustment to deferred tax asset for change in rate of UK corporation tax (181) -
Net recognised ncome/{expense) 8,000 {8,499)
Net recognised income attnbutable to minority interests - 24
Net recognised income/(expense) attnbutable to equity shareholders of the Company 8,000 {8,523)
Net recognised income/(expense) 8,000 (8,499)
Net recognised expense for the Company was the same as its loss in both 2007 and 2006 (see note 7)
Group and Company cash flow statements
for the year ended 31st December 2007
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000

Continuing operaticons
Operating activities
Cash generated fromAused in} operations (note 31) 8,010 20,211 (7,281) 17,365
Interest pad (4,233) 4,516) (3,739) {4,532)
Interest receved £ 21 - -
Income taxes paid (2,277) 4,513) - -
Net cash generated from/(used in} operating actiities 1,531 11,203 (11,020) 12,833
Continuing operations
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {note 12) {1,475) {1,109 - -
Purchase of businesses and subsidiary undertakings (note 15) (8.841) (96) - -
Sale of subsidiary undertaking {note 16} 162 845 - 845
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing actrvities (10,154) (360) - 845
Continuing operations
Financing activities
Issue of ordinary share capital (note 27) 30,735 1 30,735 1
Equity dwvidends paid to shareholders {note 8) (3.382) (2,629) (3.382) (2,629)
Decrease in loans frorm banks (16,000) (11,000) (16,000} {11,000)
(Decreaseyincrease in bank overdrafts {2,286) 5,803 - -
Net cash generated by/(used in) financng activities 9,067 (7,825} 11,353 {13,628)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

- continuing operations a44 3,018 333 50
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

- discontinued operations (note 17) - (5,024) - {50)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 444 (2,006) 333 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 92 2,098 - -
Net increase/{decrease) i ¢ash and cash equivalents 444 {2.006) 333 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 536 92 333 -
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31st December 2007

1 Basis of preparation

Both the Group and Company financial staterments have been prepared by the directors in accordance with those International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards {IAS) and Interpretations (SICs and iFRICs) which have been adopted by
the European Commission and endorsed for use in the EU {collectvely “Adopted IFRS™) On publishing the Comipany financial staternents
here together with the Group financial statements, the Company 15 taking advantage of the exemption in s230 of the Companies Act
1985 not to present its individual income statement and related notes

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, other than for the valuation of certain financal
instruments The financal statements have been prepared In pounds sterfing which 1s the functional currency of the Group and
the Company

The principal accounting policies are set out below

Estimates and judgements

The preparation of accounts In accordance with Adopted IFRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

the reported amounts of assets and liabifities at the date of the accounts and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses dunng

the reported penod These estimates are based on histoncal expenence and various other assumptions that management and directors
believe are reasonable under the arcumstances, the results of which form the basis for making Judgements about the carmang value of
assets and hiabitities that are not readity apparent from cther sources Areas compnsing critical judgerments that may significantly affect
the Group's earmings and financial position are bad debt provisioning, valuation of intangibles including goodwill, tax enquiries, provisions
for pensions, Income taxes, property related iterns and share-based payrents, all of which are discussed n the respective notes

Adoption of new and revised standards

In the current year, the Group has adopted IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments Disclosures™ which is effective for annual reporting percds
beginning on or after 1st January 2007, and the related amendment to IAS 1 *Presentation of Finanaal Statements” The impact of

the adoption of IFRS 7 and the changes 10 1AS 1 has been to expand the disclosures provided in these financial statements regarding
the Group's financial nstruments and management of capital (see note 24) Four interpretations 1ssued by the International finanaal
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) are effective for the current penod These are IFRIC 7 “Applying the Restatement Approach
under I1AS 29, Finanaal Reporting 1n Hypennflationary Econories”, IFRIC 8 “Scope of IFRS 2, Accounting for Share-based Payments”,
IFRIC 9 "Reassessment of Embedded Derwvatives”, and IFRIC 10 “Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment” The adoption of these
interpretations has not led to any changes in the Group's accounting policies

At the year end, the following standards and interpretations, which have not been applied in these financal statements, were In 1ssue
but not yet effective

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

IFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

IFRS 3 (Rewvised) Business Corrbinations

IAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

IFRIC %1 IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC 14 1A5 19 The Limits on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minmum Funding Reguirements and their Interaction

The directors anticpate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations in future penods wall have no matenal Impact on the
finanaa! statements of the Group except for additional segment disclosures when IFRS 8 comes into effect for penods commencing on
or after 1st January 2009

2 Accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The accounung reference date of the Group, comprising the Company and all its trading subsidiary undentakings, 1s 31st December
These financial statements are accordingly presented for the year to 31st December 2007

Subsicianies are those companies controlled directly or indirectly by Nestor Healthcare Group plc Control exsts where the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating polices of an enterpnse so as to obtain benefits from its activities

The results of businesses acquired are induded from the effective date of acquisiion and businesses sold are included up to the effective
date of disposal The effective date of acquisition or disposat Is considered to be the date when controi passes Acquisitions have been
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting The cost of acquisition s¢ accounted for ncludes directly related capitalised costs
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31st December 2007

2 Accounting policies continued

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidianes to bnng the accounting policies into line with those
used by the Group

All ntra-group transactions, balances, incame and expenses are eliminated on consolidation

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidianes 1s accounted for using the purchase method The cost of the acquisition 15 measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity Instrurments 1ssuied by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attnbutable to the business combination The acquiree’s idenufiable assets, liabifties and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recogrution under IFRS 3 are recogrised at therr farr value at the acquisition date

Revenue

Revenue 1s measured at the fair vajue of the consideration received and recevable and represents amounts recevable for services prowded
in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes Revenue is recogrised when services are supplied {o
external customers against orders recerved In the Social Care business segment, the pont of supply is generally defined as the pont at
which a service user has received care services from the Group, which are usually provided on a darly basis In the Pnmary Care business
segment, revenue 15 recognised erther on the delivery of spectfic senices or, for capacity-related contracts, on a time-elapsed basis as the
pnncipal contractual obligation 15 to provide an agreed level of capacity over a fixed term There 1s generally no obligation under these
contracts to carry forward non-utilised capaaty

Interest ncome 15 accrued on a time basis, by reference to the pnnapal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
15 the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the assets net camying amount Dmdend
incorme from investments 15 recogrised when shareholders’ nghts to receive payment have been established

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recogrised in the income statement in the penod tn which they are incurred

Foreign currency
Assets and habilties denominated in foreign curvencies are translated into sterling at the pencd end exchange rates

Leases
Payments under operating lease arangerments are charged to the Income statement on a straight line basis

Corporation tax

The amount included in the Income statement 1s based on pre-tax reparted profit or loss and s calculated taking nto account temporary
differences and the likelihood of realisation of deferred tax assets and liabilities The Group's hiability for current tax 1s calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax 15 the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carmyng amounts of assets and habilities i the
financal statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance
sheet hability method Deferred tax habilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable prafits will be avallable aganst which deductible temparary differences can be
utlhsed Such assets and habilities are nct recogrused if the temporary differences anse from the intial recognition of goodwall or from the
mitial recognimion {other than in a business combination) of other assets and labilries i a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax 1s provided using rates of tax that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets
and hiabiities are not discounted

The camying amount of deferred tax assets 15 revewed at each balance sheet date and reduced 10 the extent that it 1s no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits wall be avallable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply i the penad when the liability is settled or the asset s realised
Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the income staterment, except when It relates to stems charged or credited directly to equity

Deferred tax assets and liabilibes are offset when there 15 a legally enforceable nght to set off cument tax assets against current tax
habilties arxd when they relate to Incorne taxes levied by the same taxation authorty and when the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and habiliies on a net basis
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Goodwill

Where the cost of acquisition exceeds the farr values attnbutable to the net assets acquired, the resulting goodwall s capitalised
Goodwll 15 tested for imparment annually and also when mdicators suggest that the carmang value may not be recoverable Goodwill 15
carned at cost less amortisation charged pnor to the Group's transition to IFRS on 1st January 2004, less accumulated impairment losses
Any imparment 1s recogmised in the penad tn which it 1s identified

Group goodwill derves from the acquisition of businesses and subsidiary undertakings in 2007 and prior years The directors have
specifically evaluated the camying values of goodwill for each such acquisition The recoverable amount of goodwall in each cash-
generating unit 1s determined based on value In use calculations These calculations require the use of estimates for cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by managernent, extrapolated using estimated growth rates which do not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the businesses in which the unit operates Key assumptions used for value in use calculations are budgeted
operating prafit, depreciation and capital expenditure, working capital requirements growing in line with the growth rates assumed of

2 5% nominal annual Increase beyond the budgeted penod, and a pre-tax discount rate of 13 5%

Prior to the adoption of IFRS, goodwall was amortised over a penod not exceeding 20 years Folkwvng the adogtion of IFRS, goodwall
15 not amortised Pnor to 1st January 1998, purchased goodwill was wnitten off to reserves an acquisition Under [FRS 1, such goodwill
15 not recognised on transitton to IFRS nor 15 the goodwill transferred to the income statement on disposal of the investment, or if the
investment becomes impaired

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets represent the capitalised value of customer contracts Such contracts are capitalised at fair value and amortised
over a penod equal to the remaining Iife of each contract The carmying value i reviewed for Impairment if events or changes in
arcumstances indicate the carmying value may not be recoverable

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and impairment  Depreciation 15 calkculated so as to wite down the cost
of these assets to their estimated residual value In equal instalments over their estimated useful lives The ranges of estimated useful Iives
for each major asset category, which are reviewed annually, are

Plant and equipment, fixtures and fittings
(induding computer equipment) 3to Byears

The carrying value 1s reviewed for imparment if events or changes in arcumstances indicate the casrying value may not be recoverable

Investments
Investments in subsicdiary undertakings are held at onginal cost less any provision for imparrment

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the camying amounts of its tangible and intangtble asseis to determine whether there 15
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset s
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment toss, if any Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
ndependent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit fo which the assed belongs

Recoverable amount 15 the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverabie amount of an asset or cash-generating urit 15 estimated to be less than its carmying amount, the camying amount of
the asset or cash-generating urit 1s reduced to its recoverable amount An impairment loss 1s recogrised as an expense iImmediately

Employee benefits

The costs of providing pensions under defined benefit schemes are calculated using the projected unit credit methed and spread over the
penod dunng which benefitis expected to be denved from the employee’s services, in accordance with the adwice of qualified actuanes
Pension obligations are measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at rates reflecting the yields of high
quality corporate bonds Pension scheme assets are measured at farr value at the balance sheet date Actuanal gains and losses,
differerces between the expected and actual retums, and the effects of changes in actuanal assumptions are recagnised in the staterment
of recognised income and expense In the year they anse

The Group's contributions to defined contribution schemes are charged to the income statement as incumed
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31st December 2007

2 Accounting peolicies continued

Provisions and contingent habilities

Prowisicns are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive abligation as a result of a past event, where the amount of the
obligation can be reliably estimated and it 15 probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation If the effect of the time
value of money 1s matenal, provsions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects cument
market assessments of the time value of money and the nisks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future ¢ash flows have not
been adjusted Where discounting 1s used, the tncrease in the provision due to the passage of tme 15 recogrised as a finance expense

Where the Group has a possible obligation as a result of a past event that may, but probably will not, result in an outflow of economic
benefits, no provision 1s made Disclosures are made of the contingent hability including where practicable an estimate of the financial
effect, uncertainties refating to the amount or timing of the outflow of resources, and the possibility of any rambursement

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnise balances at banks that are not capable of being offset against overdrafts or other bank borrowings
under group overdraft arangements, together with balarices of cash in hand

Share-based payments

IFRS 2 has been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7th Nevember 2002 in accordance with the provisions of the standard
The Group 155ues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees under the terms of vanous employee share and share option
schemes, induding long-term incentive plans and Save As You Earn share option schemes Equity-settled share-based payments are
measured at far value at the date of grant The fair value so determined at the grant date 1s expensed on a straght line basis over the
vesting penod, based on an estimate of the shares that will ulumately vest, and adjusted for the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions Fair value has been measured using a stochastic simulation modelling valuation method

The fair values of awards granted pnor to 7th Novernber 2002 have not been charged to mcome

The hability to the Company in respect of these shares 15 accounted for as a capital contnbution made to subsidiary companies by the
Company, and as such 1s recognised as an increase in investments in the balance sheet of the Company

Financial instruments

In the year to 31st December 2007 the Group has adopted IFRS 7 “FRinanaial Instruments Disclosure” In the opinion of the directors
the accounting policies set out below are consistent wath the requirements of this standard

Finanaal assets and financial habilites are recognised in the Group's balarice sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument

Finanaal assets are classified as either financial assets “at fair value through profit or loss” (FYTPL) or “loans and recervables”
The ¢lassification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and 1s determined at the time of inmal recognition

Financral assets are dassified as FVTPL where the financial asset s held for trading or 1s designated as FYTPL A financial asset s classified
as held for trading If 1t has been acquired pnnaipally for the purpose of selling in the near future or it 15 a demvative that 1s not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument Financial assets at FYTPL are stated at fair value, with any resuttant gain or loss recognised In
finance income or expense i the Income statement The net gain or loss recognised in the income statement ncomorates any interest
earned on the financial asset

Trade recevables and other recenvables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted n an active market are dassified
as loans and recevables Loans and recevables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any imparrment
Interest ncome 1s recogrused by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term recenvables when the recognition of interest
would be immatenal

Finanoial assets, other than FYTPL, are assessed for indicators of mpairment at each balance sheet date Finanaal assets are impaired
when there 15 objective ewdence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the intial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows have been impacted

The carmng amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
recenvables, where the camying amount s reduced through the use of an allowance account When a trade recewvable is considered
uncollectable, it 1s written off against the allowance account Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously witten off are credited
against the allowance account Changes in the carmying amount of the allowance account are recorded in the iIncome statement within
administration expenses If in a subsequent penod the amount of the Imparrment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the iImpairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss 15 reversed through
the ncome statement to the extent that the carnyng amount at the date of impaimment 1s reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised
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The Group has not classified any of its financial assets as held to matunty or available for sale

Financial liabiliies are classified according to the substance of the contractual arangements entered into Financial labilities are classified
as either financial habihties “at FYTPL” or “other financial liabilrires”

Financial hatilities are dassified as PYTPL where the financial liability 1s held for trading A financial liability s classried as held for trading
if 1t has been incurted prapally for the purpose of disposal in the near future or it 15 a denvative that s not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument Fnancial habilrties at FYTPL are stated at farr value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in finance income
or expense In the ncome statement The net gain or loss recognised In the income statement Ncorporates any Interest paid on the
financial hability

The Group has entered into interest rate swap contracts to hedge its exposure to changes in interest rates {note 23) These denvative
financial instruments are iniially recognised at fair value at the date each contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to
therr fair value at each balance sheet date The resutting gain or loss 1s recogrised in finance iIncome or expense in the Income statement
immediately The fair value of these interest rate denvatives 15 obtaned using quotations supplied by the counterparty banks

Other than the interest rate swaps noted above, the Group has not designated any other financial asset or liability as being FYTPL

Other financial habilities, including borrowangs, are initially measured at far value, net of transaction costs Other financial habilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future ¢ash payments through the expected Iife of the financial hatulity or, where appropnate, a shorter penod

Unless otherwise indicated, the carrying amounts of both financial assets and financial labiltres held by the Group are reasonable
approximations of their respective fair values (note 24)

Finanazl mstruments issued by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the definition of a financial
liabilty The Company’s ordinary shares in ssue are classified as equity instruments For the purposes of the disclosures given 1 note 24,
the Group considers its capital to consist of ordinary share capital, share premium reserve, share payment reserve, other raserves and
retained earnings

3 Segmental reporting

Dunng the year operations were conducted and managed through two segments, Social Care and Primary Care, with results reported on
this basis The Heafthcare Staffing segmentt was demerged on 4th September 2006 and has been accounted for as a discontinued operation
Costs have been aliocated on a specific basis where possible, and certain central costs allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis

The UK was the ongin and destination of all of the Group’s revenue in both 2007 and 2006 All revenue 15 denved from external
customers All of the Group's eperating profits{losses) were earned in the UK, and all of the Group's operating assets and significantly
all of the net assets were located i the UK

2007 2006

£000 £000
Revenue by business segment
Social Care 124,204 111,432
Pnmary Care 55,419 61,208
Total — continuing operatiens 179,623 172,640
Discontinued operations - 41,807
Total revenue 179,623 214,447
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3 Segmental reporting continued

Operating profit/{loss}

2007 2006
£000 £000
Operating profit/{loss) by business segment
Social Care 10,054 14,159
Primary Care 3,094 4,447
Total - continuing operations 13,148 18,606
Discontinued operations - (20,926}
Total operating profit/loss) 13,148 {2,320}
Profit/{loss)
2007 2006
£000 £000
Profit for the year
Operating profit by bustness segment — continuing operations
Social Care 10,054 14,159
Primary Care 3,094 4,447
Total operating prcfit by business segment — continuing operations 13,148 18,606
Finance income 213 21
Finance expense {4,447) (4,831}
Profit before taxation 8,914 13,796
Tax expense {3,085) (4,227
Profit after tax for the year from continuing operations 5,829 9,569
Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued operations - {20,450}
Profitloss) for the year 5,829 (10,881}
Segment Segment Net operating
assets habiiues  assetshabilities)
2007 2007 2007
£000 £000 £000
Analysis of operating assets and liabilities by business segment - 2007
Social Care 73,304 {12,281) 61,023
Pnmary Care 54,530 (5,341) 49,189
Central 6.046 (11,042) (4,996)
Total operating assets/(habilities), including goodwall, at 31st December 2007 133,880 (28.664) 105,216
2007
£000
Net assets per Group balance sheet 47,248
Net debt (note 22) 57,968
Total net operating assets, including goodwall, at 31st December 2007 105,216
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Segment Segment Net operating
a55ets habilities  assetsAliabiliies)
2006 2006 2006
£000 £000 £000
Analysis of operating assets and habilities by business segment — 2006
Social Care 59,549 (15,337 44,212
Primary Care 58,700 (12,094) 46,606
Centrat 3916 6,121) (2,205)
Total - continuing operatrans 122,165 (33,552) 88,613
Discontinued cperations - - -
Total operating assetsAlabilities), iIncluding goodwill, at 31st December 2006 122,165 (33,552) 88,613
2006
£000
Net assets per Group balance sheet 11,915
Net debt (note 22) 76,698
Total net operating assets, including goodwall, 2t 31st December 2006 88,613
Capital Amortisation Impairment
expenditura. Acquisitions Deprecaton af intangibles of goodwall
2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Analysis of other segment items - 2007
Social Care 321 8,841 412 493 -
Primary Care 860 - 737 - -
Central 294 - 424 - _
Total — continuing operations 1475 8,841 1573 493 -
Discontinued operations - - - -
Total 1,475 8,841 1,573 493 —
Capital Amartisation Impairment
expenditure Acquisitions Depreaiation of Intangibles of goodwill
2006 2006 2006 2006 2006
£000 £000 £00G £000 £000
Analysis of other segment items - 2006
Social Care 131 - 778 331 -
Primary Care 359 - 745 - -
Central 619 - 336 - -
Total — continuing operations 1,109 - 1,859 3 -
Discontinued operations 7 - 137 - 14,470
Total 1,116 - 1,996 331 14,470
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4 Operating profit -~ continuing operations

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000
Operating profit of continuing operations Is stated
after charging/(crediting)
Employee costs including share-based payments charge 120,880 107,403 - -
Impairment of investment - - - 16,171
Amortisation of intangible assets 493 33 - -
Depreqation of property, plant and equipment 1.573 1,859 - -
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 4 58 - -
Gan on sale of subsidiary undertaking (156) (1,962} - -
Operating lease rentals
Land and buildings 2,901 2,347 - -
Plant and machinery 1,037 411 - -

The impairment of investment accounted for in the Company in 2006 was made to reduce the carmying value by £16,171,000, being the
fair value of the net assets of the Heafthcare Staffing business that were dermerged in September 2006

Remuneration of the Companys auditor in respect of audit and all other services was as shown below

2007 2006

£000 £000
Fees payable for the audit of the annual accounts of the Greup and Company 135 205
Fees payable for other services
The audit of the Company’s subsidianes, pursuant to legislation 15 26
Other services supplied pursuant to legisiation - 325
Tax services - 197
Services relating to corperate finance transactions - 327
Fees payable for other services 15 875
Total fees payable to the Company’s auditor 150 1,080

Auditors' remuneraticn relating to the statutory audit of the Company of £7,000 {2006 £25,000) was borne by ancther Group
company Fees payable to the auditors for non-audit services to the Company are not disclosed, due to the fees being disclosed above on

a consolidated basis

5 Finance income and expense

2007 2008
£000 £000
Finance income
Bank interest recevable 3 12
Net finance credit on defined benefit pension schemes (note 35) 182 9
Total finance mcome 213 21
2007 2006
£000 £000
Fmance expense
Unwinding of discount in property provisions (126) (140)
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts (4,302} (4,6%0)
Interest payable on other loans - (1)
Fair value loss relating to interest rate denvative contracts (19) -
Total finance expense (4,447) (4,831)
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6 Taxation

2007 2006

£000 £000
UK corporation tax on taxable profit from continuing cperations for the year (1,779) (3.477)
QOver/under) provision In previcus years — current tax 335 (338)
Current tax charge (1,444) (3,815)
Deferred tax charge for the year {1,131) a2y
Change in tax rate (200) -
Under provision in previous years — deferred tax (310) -
Deferred tax charge (1,641) 412
Tax expense for the year - continuing operations (3,085) 4,227

The effective tax rate for the year s higher than the standard rate (30% (2006 30%)) of corporation tax for the UK The differences are
explained below

2007 2008
£000 £000
Profit from continuing operations at the standard rate of corporation tax at 30% {2,674) (4,139)
Effect of change in tax rate (137) -
Itens not deductible (59) 250
Deferred tax derecognised (240) -
Over/{under) provision in previous years - current tax 335 1338y
Under provision in previous years — deferred tax (310) -
Tax expense for the year — continuing operations (3,085) (4,227}
2007 2006
£000 £000
UK corporation tax on taxable loss from discontinued operations for the year - 815
Under provision in previous years — current tax - (145)
Current tax credit - 670
Deferred tax charge for the year - (194)
Tax credit for the year — discontinued operations - 476

7 Loss for the year

The loss after tax for the year dealt with tn the accounts of the Company amounts to £3,258,000 {2006 loss of £1,260,000)

Alf of this loss relates to continuing operations {2006 loss of £1,210,000) and £nil to discontinued operations {2006 loss of £50,000)
As allowed by the provisions of $230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Company has not published its own income staterment

8 Duwndends
2007 2005
£000 £000
Equity dividends paid
Ordinary shares final dividend for the previous year 2 00p per 10p share (2006 2 00p) 2,254 1,753
Ordinary shares internim dividend for the current year 1 00p per 10p share (2006 1 Q0p) 1,128 876
Total dvidends paid on equity shares 3 00p per 10p share (2006 3 00p per 10p share} 3,382 2,629
Dividend in specie relating to the demerger of the Healthcare Staffing business segment - 16,171

In addition, the directors propose a final dwvidend for the year ending 315t December 2007 of 1 00p per 10p share {cost £1,128,442) and
aresolution to this effect will be tabled at the Annual General Meeting

It 15 proposed that the dvidend will be paid on 25th July 2008 to sharehclders who are on the register of members on 27th June 2608

Annual Report and Accounts 2007 47




Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31st December 2007

9 Earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earningsAloss) per 10p share Is calculated by dmvding the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the werghted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year

For diluted earrings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all potentially
dilutive ordinary shares The Group has only one category of potentially dilutive ordiary shares those share options granted to employees
where the exercise pnce s less than the average market pnce of the Company’s ordinary shares dunng the year In the year to 31st
Decermnber 2007 the only such options were 97,597 options granted under the Share Option Plan 2002 1n Novernber 2005 and 155,015
options granted under the Savings Related Share Option Scheme 1n Apnl 2005

2007 2006

Werghted Weighted 2006
avaerage 2007 2006 average Earnings/
2007 number of Earmings Eaningy number of {loss)
Earnings 10p shares per share {loss) 10p shares per share
£000 thousand perke £000 thousand pence
Continuing operations
Earnings per share 5,829 108,243 539p 8,569 87,633 1092p
Bonus element of the 2007 nghts issue - - - - 5,633 (0 66p)
Dilutve effect of options - 44 (0 01p) - - -
Diluted earrengs per share 5,829 108,287 538p 9,569 93,266 10 26p
Continuing and discontinued operations
Earnings/(loss) per share 5.829 108,243 539 (10,905} 87,633 (12 44p)
Bonus element of the 2007 nghts ssue - - - - 5,633 075
Dilutive effect of options - 44 {0 01p) - - -
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share 5.829 108,287 S 38p (10,905) 93,266 (11 69p

A total of 1,808,089 share options outstanding at the end of the year were not potentally dilutive in the year to 31st December 2007
(2006 2,418,451

10 Intangible assets — goodwill

2007
£000

Cost

At 1st January 2007 152,864

Addions 13,029

Reductions (203)

Disposals (4)

At 31st December 2007 165,686

Aggregate amortisation

At 1st January 2007 and 3 1st Decernber 2007 68,495

Net book value

At 31st December 2007 97,191
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2006

£000
Cost

At st January 2006 187,290
Elminated on demerger (34,426)
At 315t December 2006 152,864
Aggregate amortisation

At 1st January 2006 73,451

Impairment of goodwill relating to Healthcare Staffing 14,470
Eliminated on demerger (19,426)
At 315t December 2006 68,495
Net book value

At 31st December 2006 84,369

Group geodwill dernves from the acquisition of businesses and subsidiary undertakings in 2007 and pricr years The directors consider
that goodwill represents value to the Group for which the recognition of a discrete Intangible asset 1s nesther permitted nor appropnate
Such value pnmanly comprises future and potential future economic benefits iInduding addiionat revenues and operating synergies that
it 1s anticpated may be derved from the business, together with the fair value of the workforce in place at the date of acquisition

Where goodwill has denved from the acquisition of businesses and subsidiary undertakings in these years, the directors have speafically
evaluated the carrying values of goadwill for each such acquisition The recoverable amount of goodwill in each cash-generating unt

15 determined based on value In use cakulations These calculations require the use of estimates for cash flow projections based on
one-year financial budgets approved by management, extrapolated for 10 years using estimated growth rates which do not exceed the
long-term average growth rate for the businesses in which the unit operates, before applying a terminal value to these annual cash flows
Key assumptions used for value 1n use calculations are budgeted operating profit, depreaation and capital expenditure, together with
working capital (generally debtors less creditors) requirements growing in line with the growth rates assumed of 2 5% norminal annual
increase beyond the budgeted penod, and a pre-tax discount rate of 13 5% Hawing evaluated the carrying values of goodwill in this way,
the directors have cencluded that no impairment of goodwall 15 needed in the year for any cash-generating urut within the Social Care or
Pnmary Care business segments In the pnor year, the directors concluded that an impairment of goodwall was required for the Healthcare
Staffing business segment, amounting to £14,470,000 This impairment was recognised pnor to the demerger of this business segment
and was included wiathin the results for that segment as discontinued operations

The carrying amounts of goodwall by business segment are as follows

2007 2006
£000 £000

Goodwill by business segment

Continuing operations

Social Care 52,039 39,217

Pnmary Care 45,152 45,152

Total 972,11 84,369
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11 Other intangible assets

2007
£000

Cost

At st January 2007 1,355

Addrttons 570

At 31st December 2007 1,925

Aggregate amortisation

At 1st January 2007 947

Charge for the year 493

At 31st December 2007 1,440

Net book value

At 31st December 2007 485
2006
£000

Cost

At st January 2006 and 31st Decernber 2006 1,355

Aggregate amortisation

At 1st January 2006 616

Charge for the year 331

At 31st December 2006 947

Net book value

At 31st December 2006 408

Other intangible assets represent the capitalised value of customer contracts acquired via business combinations (acquisitions of
businesses and subsidiary undertakings} made since 1st January 2004 Such contracts are capitalised at farr value and amortised aver
a penod equal to the remaining Iife of each contract Contract lives so amortised vaned between one year and five years All were
within the Social Care business segment at both 3 1st December 2007 and 315t December 2006

All of the other intangible assets were owned by subsidiary undertakings of the Company at bath 31st December 2007 and
31st December 2006

The Group carmes out reviews of its Intangible assets on an annual basis to determine whether events or changes in Circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not e recoverable If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
15 estimated as either the higher of the net selling pnce or value In use, the resultant loss {the difference between the carrying amount and
the recoverable amount) 1s recarded as a charge to the consolidated income statement The value in use 15 caleulated as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows expected to resutt from the use of assets in the business being evaluated In order to determine the
present value of esumated future cash fiows, the Group uses a discount rate of 13 5% based on ts estimated weighted cost of capital,
tegether with any nsk premium as appropniate Estimated future cash flows used in the impairment calculations represent management's
best view of kely market conditions including selling prices, volumes and employment costs Actual cash flows may differ s;gnificantly
from these estimates due to the effect of changes in market conditions or to subsequent decsians on the adimbes of the business

These differences may have a matenal impact on the asset values, impairments and amortisation expense reported in future penods
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12 Property, plant and equipment

2007
Group £000
Cost
AL Vst January 2007 12,693
Additions 1,475
Acquired by acquisition 15
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiary (o
Disposals {97)
At 31st December 2007 14,076
Deprecration
At 1st January 2007 9,046
Charge for the year 1,573
Eliminated on dispesal of subsidiary 8
Elrminated on disposals (93)
At 31st December 2007 10,518
Net book value
At 31st December 2007 3,558
2006
Group £000
Cost
At 1st January 2006 13,907
Additions 1.116
Eliminated on demerger {(1.509)
Elirminated on disposal of subsidiary (258)
Disposals (163)
At 31st December 2006 12,693
Depreciation
At 1st January 2006 8,802
Charge for the year 1,996
Eliminated on demerger (1,467)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiary (180)
Eliminated on disposals {105)
At 31st December 2006 9,046
Net book value
At 31st December 2006 3,647
13 Commitments
2007 2006
£000 £000

Capital expenditure that has been contracted but not provided for

The Company has made a commitment to the Pensions Regulator to make cash payments into both defined benefit pension schemes
Cash payments of at least £1,280,000 will be paid each year up to and including 2012 mto the Nestor Healthcare Group Retirement
Benefits Scherne, whilst cash payments of £1,150,000 will be paid each year up to and incduding 2013 into the Healthcall Group Limited
Pension Scheme It 1s planned that these payments wall eliminate the funding deficits on both schemes over a pentod not exceeding

seven years
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14 Investments

Investment
in subsidiaries
2007
£000

Company
At 1st January 2007 188,267
Disposals {2)
Caprtal contributiens for share-based payments (20
At 31st December 2007 188,245
Investment
In subsidiaries
2006
£000

Company
At 1st January 2006 114,123
Additions 90,000
Impairment (16,171)
Capital contnbutions for share-based payments 315
At 31st December 2006 188,267

In September 2006, mmediately pnor to the demerger of the Healthcare Staffing business segment, £90,000,000 due to the Company
by a subsidiary by way of intercompany loan was wawved Followang this waer, the amount remaining due to the Company on this
intercompany loan reduced from £52,033,000 to £2,033,000 This wanver has been accounted for by the Company as a caprtal
contnbution thereby increasing the camying vatue of investments

Subsequently, on demerger, an impairment was accounted for by the Company in the carrying value of investments equivalent to the
amaunt of the dividend in specie, £16,171,000, made by & subsidiary company Investments in Group undertakings are stated at cost
less imparments

Except where stated, the following subsidiary companies are wholly-owned including 100% voung nghts, operate in the UK and are
registered in England and Wales All companies have been included in the consolidated results of the Group

Principal undertakings

Undertaking Business

Nestor Primecare Services Limited! UK healthcare services in pnmary and social care
Nestor Equioment Leasing Limited! Provision of asset leasing

Helenus Limited Intermediate holding company

} The interest of Nestor Healthcare Group plc 1s held through intermediate holding companies

The directors consider that to give full particulars of all subsidiary undertakings would lead to a statement of excessive length A full st
of subsidiary undertakings will be annexed to the Cornpany’s next annual return

Related party transactions
Group

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consohidation and are not
disclosed in this note The Group had no matenal transactions with other related parties during the year

Details of any transactions with directors are set out in the remuneration report Compensation of directors and key management 15
disclosed in note 34 Duning the year there were no other matenal transactions or balances between the Group and 1ts key management
personnel or members of their close family
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Company

The Company receives dividends from, and recharges certan costs to, subsidiary undertakings in the nermal course of business Dividend
incorne receved In the year amounted te £nil (2006 £16,171,000) Amounts recharged to subsidianes amounted to £155,000

(2006 £nil) Armounts outstanding at 31st December 2007 and 315t December 2006 between the Company and subsidiary undertakings
are disclosed in note 19

fn 20086, the Campany waived £90,000,000 due from a subsidiary undertaking This waiver was accounted for as a capital contribution,
thereby Increasing the carrying value of investments

15 Purchase of businesses and subsicianes

Six comparies and one unincorporated business were acquired in the year to 31st December 2007 Al were in the Social Care
business segment

The provisional fair values of assets and liabiliies acquired in the year, and adjustments thereof relating to the 2003 and 2005 acquisitions,
and the goodwill ansing are autlined in the table below All values of assets, habdlities and goodwill ansing an the 2007 acquisitions wall
be finalised in the 2008 financial statements, when detarled reviews of businesses acquired are completed The payment of deferred
consideration will in part be dependent on future performance of the businesses acquired

Intangible assets acquired represent the capitalised value of customer contracts These have been capitalised at fair value and amortised
over the remaining Iife of each contract Contract ives so amortised vary between one year and five years

Adjustments re
2007 2003 and 2005
Acquisitions acquisitions Total
£600 £000 £000
Property, plant and equipment 15 - 15
Intangible assets 570 - 570
Non-current assets 585 - 585
Current assets and liabilities
Recawables and prepayrnents 1,788 - 1,788
Payables and accruals {3161) - (3,161)
Net cash 1,102 - 1,102
Net current liabilites 271) - 271)
Provisions {250) - (250)
Net assets acquired 64 - 64
Purchase consideration 13,020 (194) 12,826
Costs of acquisition 64 - 64
Total cost 13,084 (194) 12,850
Total goodwill arising in the period 13,020 (194) 12,826

A far value adjustment of £238,000 has been made to account for the accrued dilapidations prowiston n respect of acquired entities
A far value exercise camed out for each acquisition identified £570,000 of intangible assets With these exceptions, the fair value and
book value of all other assets and habibties acquired were matenally the same
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15 Purchase of businesses and subsidiaries continued

Total
Cash flows n respect of purchase of businesses £000 £000 £000
2007 acquisitions
Total consideration 13,020 - 13,020
Costs of acquisition 64 - 64
13,084 - 13,084
Less deferred and contingent consideration accrued, not yet paid {3,250} - {3,250
9,834 - 9,834
Less net cash acquired (1,102) - {1,102)
8,732 - 8,732
2005 acquisitions
Deferred and contingent consideration, previously accrued, paid v 2007 - 109 109
Total net cash flows in respect of purchase of businesses 8,732 109 8,841

Acquigiions contnbuted £8,033,000(2006 £nil} to revenue and £898,000 (2006 £nil) to operating profit in the year If these acquisthions
had been completed on the first day of the year, Group revenue would have been £183,175,000 and Group profit attributable to equity

holders of the Company would have been £6,297,000

16 Disposals

On 26th November 2007 the Group transferred the trade and certain assets of its Carewatch Norfolk business to a dormant subsidiary,
Nene Valley Care Limited This subsidhary was then immediately disposed of for a consideration of £162,000

£000

Cash flows in respect of disposal of subsidary undertaking
Total consideration

162

Total cash flow in respect of disposal of subsidiary undertaking

162

Profit on disposal of the 100% shareholding in Nene Valley Care Limited was £156,000, computed as follows

£000

Net assets
Property, plant and equ:pment
Purchased goodwili

Net assets of Nene Valley Care Limited
Total consideratron

162

Frofit on disposal

156
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17 Discontinued operations

2007 2006

£000 £000
Loss of discontinued operations
Operating loss of discontinued operations before goodwall impairment - (3,286)
Impairment of goodwill - (14,470)
Operating loss of discentinued operations - (17.756)
Tax credit - 476
Loss after tax of discontinued cperatrons - (17,280)
Losses on demerger of discontinued operations
Costs relating to the demerger - (3,170)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations - (20,450)

2007 2006

£000 £000
Cash flows relating to discontinued operations
From operating activities - (6,822)
From investing actvities - 1,798
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents in discontinued operations - (5,024)
18 Deferred tax assets

2007 2006

£000 £000
Pension liability (note 35) 1,784 3,597
Accelerated capital allowances 1,083 1,425
Intangible assets 10 284
Share-based payments - 270
Cther 87 134
Total recognised deferred tax assets 2,964 5,710

The Group also has unprovided potentially recognisable deferred tax assets of £240,000 (2006 £nil} in relation to short-term timing
differences which are curreritly not expected to reverse All other potentially recognisable tax assets have been recognised and induded
within non-current assets

There were no deferred tax assets of the Company at erther 31st December 2007 or 31st Decermber 2006
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19 Trade and other recevables

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade recevables
- Gross 20,470 18,269 - -
— Bad debt prowision {692) (545) - -
Amounts owed by Group companies - — 16,229 7,726
Accrued income and other receivables 7,262 7,064 595 -
Prepayments 2,571 3,243 - -
Trade and other recevables due within one year 29,611 28,031 16,824 7,726

Concentrations of credit nisk with respect to trade recervables are mited due to the Group's customer base being large and unrelated
Accordingly, management believes that there 1s ne further credit nsk provision required in excess of normal provision for deubtful
recevables All recevables are due from customers resident in and trading in the UK The net of the gross value of trade recenvables
and any related provision represents the carmypng value which is equal to farr value There is no difference between the carrying amount
and the maxarmum credit nsk exposure

20 Current habilities — falling due within one year

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

£000 £000 £000 £000
Bank overdrafts (note 22) 4,504 6,790 - -
Dervative financial instruments 421 - 421 -
Trade payables 3,256 4,777 - -
Cther payables 4,020 1,707 - -
Deferred consideration for acquisitions 3,250 520 - -
Accruak and deferred income 5,784 7,394 913 -
US payroll tax - 1,407 - -
Other UK tax and socal secunity 3,191 2,509 - -
Current tax habilives - 509 - -
Employment benefit habilities (note 25) 3,122 1,978 - -
Property provisions (note 25) 1,091 1,020 - -
Total current labilities 28,639 28,611 1,334 -

Of the deferred consideration for acquisitions, £2,400,000 (2006 £520,000) is contingent upon future profitabilty of the
acquired businesses

21 Non-current liabilities - amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

£000 £000 £000 £000
Bank loans (note 22) 54,000 70,000 54,000 70,000
Emplayment benefit abilities (note 25) 3,250 10,012 - -
Property provisions {note 25) 1,279 1,719 - -
Total non-current lablihies 58,529 81,731 54,000 70,000
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22 Net borrowings

Group Company

Interest 2007 2006 2007 2006
rates £000 £000 £000 £000

Secured
Bank overdrafts and loans varable (58,504) {76,790} (54,000) (70,000)
Total borrowings (58,504) {(76,790) (54,000) (70,000)
Cash at bank and in hand 536 92 333 -
Net borrowings (57,968) (76,698) (53,667) (70,000)

At 315t December 2007 all the bank overdrafts and loans were secured by a fixed and floating charge over Group assets

Net borrowings for the Group are summarnsed as follows

Repayable Repayable Repayable
within between between
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 3 years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Secured
Bank overdrafts and loans {4,504) (54,000) - (58,504)
Total borrowings {4,504) (54,000} - (58,504}
Cash at bank and in hand 536 - - 536
At 315t December 2007 (3,968) {54,000 - (57,968}
At 315t December 2006 (6,698) - {70,000) (76,698)

Net borrowmngs for the Company are summansed as follows

Repayable Repayable Repayable
within between between
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 3 years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Secured
Bank loans - (54,000} - (54,000)
Total borrowings - (54,000) - (54,000)
Cash at bank and in hand 333 - - 333
At 31st December 2007 333 {54,000) - (53,667)
At 31st December 2006 - - {70,000) (70,000)

23 Derwative finanaal instruments

Counterparties to the financial instruments entered Into by the Group are major International financial institutions wath high long-term
credit ratings The Group moniters its credit exposure to its counterparties wa therr credit ratings (where applicable) and through its policy
thereby imiting rts exposure to any one party to ensure that they are within Board approved imits and that there are no significant
concentrations of credit nsk

At 315t Decernber 2007 the Group has entered into Interest rate swap contracts to hedge s exposure to changes in interest rates

These denvative financal instruments are inially recogrused at fair vatue at the date each contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured o therr far value at each balance sheet date The resultant gain or loss is recognised within the income statement within
finance income or expense Hedge accounting has not been applied This practice 1s considered to be consistent with the requirernents of
IAS 39 "Financiat nstruments Recogrition and Measurement” Before 2007, the Group did not have any matenal financial instruments
required to be recogrised or measured under 1AS 39

The fair value of the interest rate denvatives 1s obtained using quotations supplied by the counterparty banks
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23 Derwvative financial instruments continued

At 31st December 2007 the Group has entered into two such denvatives with a combined notional value of £60,000,000 One, for

a notional sum of £45,000,000, has the effect of restnicting LIBOR rates on that level of borrowings to a range between 4 50% and

7 00%, whilst the other, for a notional sum of £15,000,000, has the effect of restncting LIBOR rates on that level of borrowngs to a
range between 4 85% and 7 00% At 31ist December 2007 the fair value of these two products combined was minus £421,000, this
negatrve fair value has been accounted for withun current liabities The associated loss has been charged to finance expense offset by a
gain of £402,00C accounted for earlier in the year when interest rate denvative contracts that had then been held were cancelled with
therr final fair vatue of positve £402,000 being realised for cash The net charge to finance expense In the year was accordingly £19,000
Both of the open denvatives expire in 2010

24 Financial instruments

The Group has exposure to certan nisks ansing from its use of financial instruments, these being categonsed as market nsk, credrt nsk,
lguidity sk and capital nsk This note descnibes the financial mstruments used, their values, the nisks to which the Group 1s exposed and
the Group's objecives, policies and processes for measunng and managing them Unless otherwise stated raferences to the Group should
be considered to apply to the Company as well Further quantitative information in respect of the financral instuments used and the
associated nsks 15 also presented throughout these financiat statements and the financial review

There have been no substantive changes in the Group’s exposure to financial instrument nisks, its objectives, pelicies and processes for
managing those nsks or the methods used to measure them from previous penads unless otherwise stated in this note

The principal financal instruments used by the Group, from wiich financial instrument nsk anses, are trade recevables, cash at bank,
bank overdrafts, trade and other payables, floating rate bank loans and interest rate denvative contracts The Board of directors has
overall responsibility for the determination of the Group’s nisk management objectives and pohcies, the overall objective being to set
policies that seek to reduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting the Group’s flexibility and competitveness

A summary of financial assets and halilities (which taken together compnse the financial Instruments), measured both at carryng value
and farr value, 15 as follows

2007 2006
Carrying value Far value  Carrping value Fair value
£000 £000 £000 £000
Group
Financial assets — cash at bank and in hand - sterfing 416 416 92 92
Financial assets — cash at bank and in hand — Australian dollars 120 120 - -
Financial assets — cash and cash equivalents 536 536 92 92
Financial assets - trade recevables 19,778 19,778 17,724 17,724
Financial assets — loans and recevables 19,778 19,778 17,724 17,724
Total financial assets 20,314 20,314 17,816 17,816
Short-term financial habilities - bank borrowings (4,504) (4,504) (6,790} {6,790)
Short-term financial labilities - trade payables (3,256) (3,256) @777 {4,777
Short-term financial liabilities - other payables (4,020) (4,020) (1,707 (1,707}
Short-term financial habilities — other UK tax and social secunty (3.191) (3,191) (2,509) (2,509)
Long-term financial iabilities — bank borrawings (54,000) (54,000) (70,000) (70,000)
Financial habilities at amortised cost (68,971) (68,971} (85,783) (85,783)
Interest rate derivatives {421) a21) - -
Financial habiliies at fair value 421) (421} - -
Total financiat habifities (69,392} (69,392) (85,783) (85,783)
Financial habiliies less financial assets (49,078} (49,078) (67,967) {67,967)
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2007 2006

Carrying value Fatr value Carrying value Farr value
£000 £000 £000 £000

Company
Financial assets — cash at bank and in hand - sterting 333 333 - -
Financal assets — cash and cash equivalents 333 333 - -
Financial assets — amounts due from Group companies 16,229 16,229 7,726 7726
Financial assets — leans and recevables 16,229 16,229 7.726 7,726
Total financial assets 16,562 16,562 7,726 7.726
Long-term financial labilities — bank borrowings {54,000) {54,000} {70,000) (70,000)
Financial liabilibes at amortised cost {54,000) {54,000) {70,000) (70,000)
Interest rate denvatives (421) (421) - -
Financial liabilites at fair value (421) (a21) - -
Total financial habilities (54,421) {54,421) {70,000} (70,000}
Financial liabilities less financial assets (37.859) (37,859) (62,274} (62,274}

Financial assets and habilities determined by category are accordingly as follows

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£000 £000 £000 £0C0
Finanaial assets — cash and cash equivalents 536 92 333 -
Financal assets — loans and recetvables 19,778 17,724 16,229 7,726
Financal assets — total 20,314 17,816 16,562 7,726
Financial habilities at amortised cost (68,971) {85,783) (54,000) (70,000)
Financral habilities at fair value {421) - (421) -
Financal habilities less financial assets (49,078) (67,967} (37,859) (62,274)

Fair value 1s the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in an arm’s length transaction between infermed and wailling
parties, cther than a forced or hquidation sale and excludes accrued interest

No financial assets held have been pledged as collateral for habiliies or contingent liabilities
Further disclosures on the interest rate denvatives included wathin financial habilines at fair value are contaned within note 23
Income and expense in retation to finanaal instruments are disclosed in note 5

Market risk

Market risk represents the potential for changes m foreign exchange prices and interest rates to affect the Group’s profit and the value of
its finangial nstruments In general the Group’s ohjective In market nsk management 15 to minimise rts exposures to fluctuations within
such vanables whlst optimising retusns

Foreign exchange risk

Bank balances denominated in Australian dollars have not been hedged as in the view of directors the amounts at nisk were not matenal
In March 2008 all such balances were repatriated 1o the UK and converted into sterling at a total amount not matenally different from
the carrying value of £120,000 as at 31st December 2007 Followang this repatniation of bank balances the Group ne longer has any
significant currency exposure to Australian dollars or to any other foraign currency No sensitity analysis has therefore been carmed out
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24 Financial instruments continued
Interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the financat habries of the Group and Compary at 31st Decemnber 2007 was

Group Company

Floating rate Floating rate

finangigl financial

habdities liabiliies

£000 £000

At 31st December 2007 - bank borrowings - all steshing 58,504 54,000
At 31st December 2006 - bank borrowings - all sterling 76,790 70,000

All financial labylities other than bank borrowings have been excluded from this analysis due to their short-term nature

The Group's palicy 1s generally to seek to hedge its expasure to the effect of interest rate vanations by entenng into interest rate

dervatives The interest rate swaps that have been entered into (as further descnbed in note 23} are considered by directors to provide
an effective hedge agamnst any interest rate movements outside of a defined central range (see sensitvty analysis below)

All floating rate interest rates are linked either to LIBOR or to bank base rates These interest rates, when applied to the floating rate

financial habulities, are generally fixed in advance for penods of between one month and six months

The interest rate profile of the Group's financial assets was

Firancal

assets

floating rate en which

financial N nterest
assets recerved Jotal
2007 2007 2007
£000 £000 £000

Currency

Sterling 41 5 416
Austraban dollars 120 - 120
At 31st December 2007 531 5 536

Finanaal

assets

Floating rate on which

finanaial no interest
assets recenved Total
2006 2006 2006
£000 £000 £000

Currency

Sterling 86 92
At 315t Decernber 2006 86 6 %2

The Company's financial assets at 3 15t December 2007 of £333,000(2006 £nil) all consisted of fioaung rate financial assets

The financial assets compnse bank deposits, bank current account balances and cash in hand The floating rate financial assets earn
interest at rates based on LBOR and are all recoverable within one year or on demand The financial assets on which no interest 1s
received represent cash in hand The effect of variations in interest rates on finance income generated from these financial assets 1s

considered to be generally not matenal

Interest rate risk — sensitivity analysis

In 2007 the impact of a 1 00% ncrease in vanable INterest rates would, so long as the interest rate remained n the range between

4 50% and 7 00%, have the effect of reduang Group profit before tax by approximately £550,000, assuming other vanables remain
constant and not allowing for any impact of such a variation on the fair value of the Interest rate swaps themselves Similarly the impact
of a 2 00% increase in variable interest rates would have the effect of reducing Group profit before tax by approximately £1,100,000,

subject to the same assumptions
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If vartable interest rates were to fall below 4 50% the Group's profit would not receve any significant benefit from the reduction below
that figure so long as its total floating rate bank borrowings remained at a smilar level to the notional value of its interest rate swaps,
which were £60,000,000 at 31st December 2007, assuming again that cther varizbles remained constant and not allowing for any
impact of such a vanation on the far value of the nterest rate swaps themselves

If vanable interest rates were to nse above 7 Q0% the Group’s profit would not recerve any significant adverse impact from the nise above
that figure so long as its total floating rate bank bormowings remained at a smilar level to the notional value of 1ts interest rate swaps,
which were £60,000,000 at 31st December 2007, assuming again that other vanables remained constant and not allowing for any
impact of such a vaniation on the fair value of the interest rate swaps themselves

Credit risk

The directors consider that by the nature of the Group's business and customers its exposure to credit risk 1s very mited In particular,
concentrations of credit nsk wath respect to trade recervables are imited due to the Group’s customer base being large and unrelated
Accordingly management believes that there 1s no further credit nsk provision required in excess of normal prowision for doubtful
recervables All recenvables are due from custamers resident in and trading in the UK The net of the gross value of trade recevables and
any related bad debt provision represents the carrying value which 1s equal to fair value There 1s no difference between the carmyng
amount and the maximum credit nsk exposure

Credit checks are not generally carmed out for new customers given: their usual status as large pubhc bodies such as Local Authorities,
Pnmary Care Trusts, Police Authorities and secure institutions  Private patients of the Social Care businesses are requested to pay by direct
debit wherever possible Considerable resource 1s expended on the Group's credit control actmty so as to optimsse the control of trade
recervables and in particular to minimise debtor days outstanding, overdue recervables and the need for any impairments

The Group records impairment losses on its trade recewables separately from gross recervables (n 2007 the allowance increased from
£545,000 at 315t December 2006 to £692,000 at 31st December 2007

An analysis of trade and other recevables 15 contained in note 19

Liquidity nsk

Liquidity nsk reflects the risk that the Group will have insufficient resources to meet its financial obhgations as they fall due The Group’s
strategy and pohcy in respect of managing lkquidity nsk 1s to ensure that the Group has sufficient hquid funds at all times to meet all of its
actual and potentiat iabilities as they fall due, iInduding antiapated shareholder distnbutions Sensitities are applied to all projections of
liabiities and iquid resources to ensure that resources will remain sufficient under all reasonable downside projections

Liquichty forecasts are produced on a weekly basis, or when drawing on the facilities, to ensure that utilsabon of current facilities 1s
optimised, and also on a monthly and quarterly basis to project compliance with covenant compliance targets agreed with the Group's
bankers and to ensure that medium-term Iiquidity 1s mantained

The matunty profile of the bank borrowings of the Group and Company, including interest payments {not discounted) at 31st December
2007 was as shown in the table below Interest payments have been calculated using LIBOR rates at the year end, except where rates had
already been contracted

Group Company

2007 2007

£000 £000

Within 1 year, or on demand 9,664 4,763
Between 1 and 2 years 58,366 58,366
Between 2 and 5 years - -
At 315t December 2007 68,030 63,129
Group Company

2006 2006

£000 £000

Within 1 year, or on demand 11,674 4,452
Between 1 and 2 years 4,452 4,452
Between 2 and 5 years 74,081 74,081
At 31st December 2006 90,207 82,985

The Group had the following undrawn floating rate commutted borrowing facitities available in respect of which all conditions precedent
had been met at that date
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24 Finanaal instruments continued

2007 2006
£000 £000
Expinng wathin 1 year 8,874 1,280

All the above facilities incur commitment fees at market rates

These faciliies are constdered te be adequate to meet all of the Group’s cash flow requirements for the foreseeable future bamng any
potential impact of extreme crcumstances that could not reasonably be anticipated

Capuital risk

The directors continue to monitor the balance of capital and debt funding for the Group though no formal target 1s cumently being
appled In March 2007 the Group rased £30,500,000 net of expenses, by way of a nghts issue, partly to reduce debt levels but pnimanly
to raise funds to pursue acquisiion opportunities for its Soaial Care businesses In managing its capital, the Groups prmary objective 15 to
ensure its continued ability to provide a consistent retum for 1ts equity shareholders through a combination of capital growth and
distnbutions by way of dmdends

Finanaial covenants agreed with the Group's bankers indude the ratio of net borrowings to the level of adjusted profit before interest,
depreciation and amortisation Following renegotiation in 2007, the maamurm level of this ratic s now set at 3 99 1, measured guartery,
until 31st December 2008 when 1t falls to 3 25 1 The actual ratio as at 31st December 2007 was 3 68 1

One further financial cavenant requires Group net worth, exduding goodwill, not to be below an adjusted negative value of
£(83,000,000) At 31st December 2007 the actual adjusted net worth excuding goodwll was £(50,261,000)

These and all other financial covenants agreed with the Group's bankers were complied with at all times in 2007

25 Prowisions

Pensions Property Total
2007 2007 2007
£000 £000 £000
Group - 2007
At 1st January 2007 11,990 2,739 14,729
Contnbutions paid (2,742) - (2,742)
Current service cost 573 - 573
Finance credit (182) - (182)
Actuanal gain (3.267) - (3,267
Charge to Income statement - 571 571
Utilised n the year - {1,304 (1,300)
Acquired with subsidiary undertaking - 238 238
Unvanding of discount - 126 126
At 31st December 2007 6,372 2,370 8,742
Provisions estimated to be settled after more than one year 3,250 1,279 4,529
Provisions estimated to be settled wathin one year 3,122 1,091 4213
Total provisions 6,372 2,370 8,742

The Company carned no provisicns at either 31st December 2007 or 31st December 2008
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Pensions Praperty Total

2005 2006 2006

£000 £000 £000
Group - 2006
At 1st January 2006 16,221 3,707 19,928
Contnbutions paid (1.425) - (1.425)
Current service cost 605 - 605
Finance credit ) - 9
Actuanal gain (3.402) - (3,402
Charge to income statement - 692 692
Utilised in the year - (1,649 (1,649)
Released on demerger - {151) (151)
Unwinding of discount - 140 140
At 31st December 2006 11,990 2,739 14,729
Prowisions estimated to be settled after more than one year 10,012 1,719 11,731
Provisions estimated to be settled within one year 1,978 1,020 2,998
Total provisions 11,9%0 2,739 14,729
Pensions

The actuanal deficits on the Group’s two defined benefit pension schemes total £6,372,000 (2006 £11,990,000) The assumptions used in
calculating the combined defict, and descnption of the schemes and their assets and hablities generally, are further descnbed in note 35

Property
The Group has a number of properties that are either vacant or sublet at a discount

The Group property proviston of £2,370,000 {2006 £2,739,000) comprises £894,000 (2006 £1,766,000) In respect of lease contracts
for such properties no longer occupied by the Group, £285,000 (2006 £173,000) 1 respect of associated lease dilapidations, £ril (2006
£11,000} In respect of associated other exit costs, and £1,191,000 (2006 £789,000) i respect of lease diapidation obligations relating to
properties that cantinue to be occupied Dilapidations payments are assumed to occur at the end of each relevant lease

Provision has been made for onerous lease costs taking into account estimates of the length of ime properties will be vacant (net of any
potential sub-lease income where this can be estimated with a high degree of probability), together with any dilaprdation costs and other
costs associated with the termination or disposal of leases In determining the prowsion for vacant properties, the cash flows have been
discaunted using the Group’s weighted average cost of capital The estirnates used in determining the appropriate level of prowsion
represent management’s best view of likely market condiions after taking external advice Actual actmity may differ from these estmates
due to the effect of changes i the property market or subseguent business deasions These differences may have a matenal impact on
the provisions established for these matters

26 Contingent habilities

By the nature of the operations camed out by the Pnimary Care business segment, the Group from time to time recewves notification of
medical incidents which could concervably lead to daims for damages being made aganst the Group on the grounds of negligence or
other reasons In the majonty of cases such inaidents, having been notified, do not in fact lead to a claim being made Even If daims are
made, they may be laid against parties other than the Group In any event, even if claims are uttimatety laid against the Group, they wall
generally be covered by the Group's insurers subject only to relatively minor excesses Nonetheless it 15 possible that n ¢entain arcumstances
the Group could face a matenal hability when presented with such dlaims Time lags between an onginal inadent and a daim being
submutted could typically be long so at any point in time the hikelihood of the Group facing such a liability may be difficult to assess

As at 31st December 2007, the Group was not aware of any such daim for which it was considered probable that the Group would
utimately face a matenal bability
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27 Share capital

2007 2007 2008 2C06
Authorised Number £000 Number £000
Ordinary shares of 10p each
At 1st January 2007 96,000,000 9,600 96,000,000 9,600
Authonsed dunng the year 26,000,000 2,600 - -
At 31st December 2007 122,000,000 12,200 96,000,000 9,600
2007 2007 2006 2006
Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid Numnber £000 Number £000
Ordinary shares of 10p each
At 1st January 2007 87,633,539 8,763 87,633,070 8,763
Issued dunng the year 25,210,670 2,521 469 -
At 31st December 2007 112,844,209 11,284 87,633,539 8,763

On Sth February 2007 approval was given for the authonsed share caprtal of the Campany to be increased to £12,200,000, by the
creatron of 26,000,000 new ordinary shares of 10 pence each

In March 2007 a total of 25,037,620 ordinary 10 pence shares were 1ssued by way of a 2 for 7 nghts issue at 130 pence per ordinary
share A further 173,050 10 pence ordinary shares were 1ssued during the year on exercise of share options, at prces ranging from
121 16 pence to 157 12 pence per ordmary share Total proceeds of all issues in the year, after associated expenses of issue which
totalled £2,063,000, amounted to £30,735,000

The ordinary shares in issue are considered by the Cornpany to be capital in nature Neither the Group nor the Company are subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements

28 Share prermium account and reserves

Share Share Retained
premium payment Other {lossesy
account reserve resernves €arnings
2007 2007 2007 2007
£000 £000 £000 £000

Group — 2007
At 1st January 2007 43,225 951 864 {(41,888)
Issue of shares 28214 - - -
Share-based payments - 20y - -
Actuanal gains ansing in defined benefit pension schemes - - - 3,267
Deferred taxation ansing on actuanal gains - - - {1,096)
Profit for the year - - - 5.829
Dividends paid to equity shareholders - - - (3,382)
At 31st December 2007 71,439 931 864 (37.27Q)

At 315t December 2007, goodwill wntten off In pnor years directly against retained earningsAlosses) in respect of subsidianes still held by
the Group was £16,891,000 {31st December 2006 £16,891,000)

Share Share Retaned
premium payment Gther earmings/
account resgrve resarves (losses)
2007 2007 2007 2007
£000 £000 £000 £000
Company - 2007
At 1st fanuary 2007 43,225 951 25,750 47,304
Issue of shares 28,214 - - -
Share-based payments - (20 - -
Loss for the year - - - (3,258)
Dvidends paid to equity shareholders - - - (3,382)
At 315t December 2007 71,439 o931 25,750 40,664
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Included in other reserves of the Company at 31st December 2007 are £25,750,000 of disinbutable reserves (2006 £25,750,000) and no
non-distnbutable reserves (2006 £nil} These other reserves compnse foreign exchange, acquisition and merger reserves and reserves ansing
from the cancellation of a share prermium account, all ansing in the penod from 1989 to 1992 The retained earmings of the Company as at
315t Decernber 2007 include £7,528,000 that 1s distnbutable (2006 £14,168,000) and £33,136,000 that s non-distnbutable (2006
£33,136,000) These non-distnbutable reserves within retained earnings relate to the receipt of a dwdend from another Group company

as part of a restructunng carmed out in 2002, parhally offset by subsequent impairments in INvestments in Group compantes

Share Share Retained
premium payment Other {lossesy
acgount resenve reserves earmngs
2006 2006 2006 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000
Group - 2006
At 1st January 2006 43,224 636 864 {14,565)
Issue of shares 1 - - -
Share-based payments - 315 - -
Actuanal gains ansing in defined benefit pension schemes - - - 3,402
Deferred taxation ansing on actuanal losses - - - {1,020)
Loss for the year - - - (10,905)
Dradends paid to equity shareholders - - - (2,629
Dwidend in specie - - - (16,171)
At 315t December 2006 43225 951 864 {41,888)
$hare Share Retained
premium payment Other earnings/
account resecve reserves {losses)
2006 2006 2006 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000
Company - 2006
At 1st January 2006 43,224 636 25,750 67,364
Issue of shares 1 - - -
Share-basec payments - 315 - -
Loss for the year - - - (1,260)
Dwdends paid to equity shareholders - - - (2,629
Dwidend in specie - - - (16,171)
At 31st December 2006 43,225 931 25,750 47,304

All categones of reserve disclosed above are considered by both Group and Company to be capital in naiure Neither the Group nor the
Company are subject to any externally imposed capital requirements

29 Statement of changes in equity

2007 2006
£000 £000

Group

Net recognised income/{expense) 8,600 {8,499)
Shares issued dunng the year 30,735 1

Dmdends paid to equity shareholders (3.382) {2.629)
Omdend in specie - (16,171)
(Decreaselincrease in share payment reserve (20} 315

Increasef{decrease) In total equity 35,333 {26,983)
Elimination of minorty interest - (277)
Total equity at the beginning of the year 11,915 39,175

Total equity at the end of the year 47,248 11,915
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29 Statement of changes in equity continued

2007 2006

£000 £000
Company
Net recognised expense (3.258) {1,260)
Shares 1ssued during the year 30,735 1
Dmdends paid to equity shareholders {3,382) {2,629)
Dmdend in specie - {16,171)
{Decrease¥increase In share payment reserve (20) 315
IncreaseAdecrease) in total equity 24,075 {19,744)
Total equity at the beginning of the year 125,993 145,737
Total equity at the end of the year 150,068 125,993
30 Minority interests

2007 2006

£000 £000
At 1st January - 253
Share of net profit of subsidiaries - 24
Elimination on disposal - (277)
At 31st December - -
31 Note to the cash flow statements

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000

Continuing operations
Reconaliation of profit/{loss) to cash generated from operations
Profitiloss) after tax for the year 5,829 9,569 (3,258} (1,210
Adjustments for
Tax expensef{credit) 3,085 4,227 {1,395) (1,360}
Finance income (213) (27) - -
Finance expense 4,447 4,831 3,954 4,532
Goodwill and investment impaiment - - - 16,171
Dmdend in speae recevable from subsidiary undertaking - - - (16,171)
Share-based payments (20 21 - -
Amartisation of intangible assets 493 31 - -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,573 1,859 - -
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 4 58 - -
Gan on sale of subsidiary undertaking {156) (1,962) - (1,962)
Changes in working capital
Decrease in provisions (2,903) {1,634} - -
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other recevables 610 (373 (7.703) 17,365
(Decreaseyincrease in trade and other payables (4,739) 3,105 1,121 -
Cash generated fromAused in) operations 8,010 20,211 (7.281) 17,365
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Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000

Reconaliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents a44 (2,006) 333 ~
Decrease in loans from banks 16,000 11,000 16,000 11,000
Decreasefincrease) n bank overdrafts 2,286 (5,803) - -
18,730 3,191 16,333 11,000
Net debt at the beginning of the year (76,698) {79,889) (70,000) (81,000)
Net debt at the end of the year (57,968) {76,698) (53,667) (70,000)

32 Operating lease commitments

The Group has numerous premises operated under leases whaose terms, conditions and expiry dates vary considerably, some of which
are no longer occupied by the Group In addition, the Group leases items of plant and eguipment and in particular has entered Into a

contract hire agreement to lease motor vehicles

At 31st Decemnber 2007 the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

Plant and Land and Land an¢!
equipment builcings buildings
including motor occupied naot occupied Total
vehicles by Group by Group net
£000 £000 £000 £000
For leases expiring
within one year 77 206 21 304
between two and five years 484 4,205 307 4,996
beyond five years - 5,508 3,858 9,406
561 9919 4,226 14,706
At 31st December 2006 the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows
Plant and Land and Land and
equipment butldings buildings
including motor occupied not occupred Jotal
vehicles by Group by Group net
£000 £000 £000 £000
For leases expirmg
within one year 107 1,020 59 1,186
between two and five years 07 1,621 956 3,484
beyond five years - 5,396 1,309 6,705
1,014 8,037 2,324 11,375

Commitments in respect of operating leases for land and buildings are disdlosed net of contracted sub-lease income
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33 Employees

2007 2006
£000 £000

Employee costs for the Group - continuing operations

Wages and salaries 112,226 100,042

Sccial secunty costs 7,608 6,325

Pension casts 1,066 815

Share-based payments (20) 221

120,880 107,403

2007 2006
£000 £000
Average number of persons employed ~ continuing operations
Full time 1,521 1,590
Part tme 7,186 5,808
8,707 7,398
2007 2006
£000 £000
Employee numbers by business segment - continuing operations
Soaal Care 7,515 6,131
Primary Care 1,192 1,267
8,707 7,398
The Company had no employees {2006 nil) dunng the year
34 Compensation of directors and key management
2007 2006
£000 £000
Directors and other key management
Salaries and shaort-term employee benefits 1,888 2,178
Post-employment benefits 298 281
Termination benefits 107 304
Share-based payments 30 261
2,323 3,024
2007 2005
£000 £000
Directors
Aggregate emoluments 805 1,486
Employer contributions o money purchase pension schemes 41 35
846 1,521

Aggregate emoluments of directors include £nil 2006 £175,000) compensation for loss of office

The detalled numencal analysis of directors” aggregate emolurments 15 included in the tables in the remuneration report on page 30 which
form part of these financial statements
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35 Pension commitments
The Group has accounted for pensions in accardance with 1AS 19 and the disclosures given below are those required by that standard

Group defined benefit pension schemes

The Group operates two funded persion schemes providing benefits based on final pensionable salary The two schemes are the Nestor
Healthcare Group Rettrement Benefits Scheme {the Nestor Scheme) and the Healthcall Group Limited Pension Scheme (the Healthcall
Scheme) Both schemes are closed to new members The schemes are administered by Frustees separately from the affairs of the Group
and are contracted out of the additional component of the State Pension Scheme

Neither scherne holds any mvestment in any financial Instrument ssued by the Group Nerther are any of the schemes’ property or other
assets occupled or used by the Group

There are no mformal practices applied that might give rise to any constructive obligations

Nestor Scheme

Watson Wyatt Limrted, consulting actuanes, camed out an actuanal valuation of the Nestor Scheme as at 5th Apnl 2006 On the actuanal
basis used, as at that date, the assessed value of the assets was 75% of the value placed on the liabilities m respect of benefits earned to
5th April 2006, aflowing for expected future increases in pensionable earmings to Normal Pension Age, treating the scheme as an
ongoing entity The funding ratio of 75% represented a shortfall of assets compared with the techmical provisions of £6,660,000

The market value of the investments held in the Nestor Scheme as at the valuation date was £20,349,000 In addition there were
pensions in payment secured by the purchase of annuities

The assumptions whuch have the most significant effect on the results of the valuation are those relating to the rate of irvestment retum
on future net cash flow and the rate of increase In pensionable earnings These rates were set relative to an assumed long-term rate of
pnce inflaticn of 3 0% per annum

The assumed future rate of investment return, used to discount projected Income and outgong benefits, was a real rate of 1 3% per
annum relative to pnce inflation for pensioners and 3 5% per annum before retirement and 1 3% per annum after retirement for
non-pensioners Pensionable earnings were assumed to increase on average at a rate of 2 0% per annum ahead of pnce inflation
with promotional increases assumed N addition

The employer’s contribution rate, currently 24 2% (39 2% for certain current and past executive directors), Is cakculated using the
projected unit method The shortfall of assets as at 5th April 2006 of £6,660,000 1s being met by a schedule of employer contributions
designed to eliminate rt by na later than Apri 2013 As the Nestor Scheme 1s dlosed to new members, under the projected unit method
the employer’s contnbution rate will Increase as the members of that scheme approach retirement

Healthcall Scheme

Wiatson Wyatt Limited, consutting actuanes, carned out an actuanal valuation of the Healthcall Scheme as at 1st Novenber 2006 On the
actuanal basis used, as at that date, the assessed value of the assets was 62% of the capitalised value of the accrued benedits, allowing
for expected future increases in pensionable earnings to Normal Pension Age, treating the scheme as an ongaoing entity The funding ratio
of 62% represented a shortfall of assets compared with the technical provisions of £6,630,000

The market value of the nvestments held in the scheme as at the valuation date was £ 10,930,000 In addition there were pensions in
payment secured by the purchase of annuities

The assumptions which have the most significant effect on the results of the valuation are those relating to the rate of investment return
and the rate of increase In pensionable earnings These rates were set refative to an assumed long-term rate of pnce inflatian of 3 0%
per annum

The assumed future rate of investment return, used to discount projected Income and outgoing benefits, was a real rate of 1 2%
per annum relative to price inflation for pensioners and 3 6% per annum befare retirement and 1 2% per annum after retirement
far non-pensioners Pensionable earnings were assumed to increase on average at the samme rate as price inflation

The emnployer's contrbution rate, currently 29 5%, 15 calculated using the projectad urit method The shortfall of assets as at

1st Novernber 2006 of £6,630,0001s being met by a schedule of employer contributions designed to eliminate it by no later than
October 2013 As the Healthcall Scheme 15 dosed to new members, under the projected unit method the employer's contnbution
rate will Increase as the members of that scheme approach retirement

Other schemes

The Group also operates several defined cantribution schemes with varying rates of employer contnibution
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35 Pension commitments continued

2007 2006
£000 £000

Pension charge

Cusrent service cost of defined benefit schemes 573 605

Group contributions to defined contnbution schemes 381 284
954 839

Net finance credit relating to defined benefit schemes (182) 9

Pension charge 772 880

The current service cost of defined benefit schemes for 2006 1s stated net of a curtament gain of £354,000 which arose on the
demerger of the Healthcare Staffing business segment in September 2006, and which materially reduced the liabilities in respect of
28 members of the Nestor Scheme

Until 5th Apnl 2007 the costs of expenses associated with the Nestor Scheme were implicit In both the service cost and the employer
contributions payable From 6th April 2007 for the Nestor Scheme, and for the whole year for the Healthcall Scheme, the costs of
expenses have not been included in the service cost or the pension charge, being pard direct by the Group and charged elsewhere to
the income staternent  The cost of the expenses associated with the Nestor Scheme from 6th April 2007 onwards was £133,000
{2006 £nil) The cost of the expenses associated with the Healtheall Scheme was £139,000 (2006 £50,000)

At 315t December 2007 £76,000 employer contnbutions had et to be paid to the respective schermes (2006 £77,000)

Valuations

The valuation used for IAS 19 disclosures has been based on the results of an actuanial valuation of the Nestor Scheme as at Sth April
2006 and of an actuanal valuation of the Healthcall Scheme as at 1st November 2006, both updated by Watson Whyatt Limited to take
account of the requirements of IAS 19 in order to assess the liabilities of the schemes at 3 1st December 2007 Assets of the schemes are
stated at ther market valuation at 31st December 2007

The accounting policy applied in respect of recognised actuanal gains and losses 1s to account for them immediately and in full wathun the
staterent of recognised income and expense

Mortality assumptions
The assumptions relating to longewty undertying the pension habilities at the balance sheet date are based on standard actuanal mortality
tables, and include an allowance for future Improvements in longewity The assumpiions are equivalent to expected longevity at age 65
for members in normal heatth approximately as follows

- penstoners currently aged 65 males 21 9 years, females 24 8 years

- non-pensianers curently aged 45 males 23 0 years, females 25 8 years

Commutation assumptions

An allowance has been made in the assumptions adopted as at both 31st December 2007 and 31st December 2006 for members to
commute pensions at retirement It has been assumed that members commute 20% of their pension, on the basis of the commutation
rates currently in force

2007 2006
Financial assumptions used to calculate the schemes’ liabilities
Valuation method Projected Projected
unit unit
Discount rate 590% 510%
Inflation rate 330% 300%
Increases to pensions in payment and deferred pensions* 330% 300%
Salary increases 525% 495%

* Different increases assumed for certain elements of pension
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2007 2006

Financial assumptions used to calculate the schemes’ net service costs for the year

Valuatron method Projected Projected

unit unit
Discount rate 510% 4 80%
Infiation rate 3.00% 280%
Increases to pensions In payment and deferred pensions™ 3.00% 2 80%
Salary increases 495% 475%

* Different increases assumed for certain elements of pension

Long-term Long-term
rate of return Value at 31st rate of return Value at 315t
expected on Decermber expected on December
315t December 2007 31st December 2006
2007 £000 2006 £000
Assets in the schemes and the expected rates of return
Equities 8 00% 25,596 8 00% 25,321
Bonds 510% 1,122 470% 5918
Other 5 40% 1,420 5 00% 1,753
Total market value of assets 34,738 32,992
Present vatue of schemes’ habilities (41,110) {44,982)
Deficit in the schemes — pension labilitres (6,372) {11,990)
Related deferred tax asset (note 18) 1,784 3,597
Net pension lability (4,588) (8,393)

The expected return for each asset class reflects a combination of histoncal performance analysis, the forward looking views of the
financial markets (as suggested by the yields available) and the wiews of Investment organisations Consideration is also given to the rate
of refumn expected to be avatlable for reinvestment The overall expected rate of return on assets s denved as the weaighted average of
the expected returns from each of the mamn asset classes

2007 2006
£000 £000
Movement in the deficit in the schemes durning the year
Defict in the schemes at the beginming of the year (11,990) (16,221)
Contributions paid 2,742 1,425
Current service cost (573) (605)
Net finance credit 182 9
Actuanal gain 3,267 3,402
Deficit in the schernes at the end of the year (6,372) {11,990)
Components of defined benefit cost for the year
2007 2006
£000 £000
Analysis of amounts charged to operating profit
Current service cost 573 603
Analysis of amounts charged to finance expense
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 2,282 2,212
Expected return on assets in the pension scheme (2.464) {2,221)
Net credit to finance expense (182) )
Total Income staterent charge before deduction for tax 3o 596
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2007 2006
£000 £000
Analysis of amounts recognised in the statement of recognised mcome and expense
Actual return on assets 208 2,645
Expected return on assets (2.464) (2,221)
Actuanal {lossigain on assets {1,656) 424
Experience gans arising on the scheme habilities 4,923 2,978
Actuanal gain recognised in the statement of recogrised income and expense 3,267 3,402
2007 2006
£000 £000
Reconaliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation (“DBO”)
Present value of DBC at the beginning of the year 44,982 45,866
Service cost 573 605
Interest cost 2,282 2,212
Employee contrbutions 119 161
Actuanal gain (4,923) (2,978)
Actual benefit payments including expenses (1,923) (1,342)
Adjustment to value placed on insurance policies - 458
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 41,110 44,982
2007 2006
£000 £000
Reconaliation of the fair value of assets
Present value of assets at the beginning of the year 32,992 29,645
Expected return on assets 2,464 2,221
Actuanal (fossy¥gain (1,656) 424
Group contributions 2,742 1,425
Employee contrbuticns 119 161
Actual benefit payrments including expenses (1,923) (1,342)
Adjustment to value placed on insurance policies - 458
Fair value of assets at the end of the year 34,738 32,992
2007 2006
£000 £000
History of expenience adjustments
Present value of defined benefit cbligations {41,110) (44,982)
Fair value of scheme assets 34,738 32,992
Deficit in the schemes at the end of the year {6,372) (11,990)
2007 2006 2005
Experience gains/(losses) on scheme habilities
Amcunt (£000) 4,923 2,978 (4,306)
Percentage of present value of scheme labilities 120% 6 6% (9 4%)
Expenence (losses)/gains on scheme assets
Amount (£000} {1,656) 424 3,252
Percentage of present value of scherne assets (4 8%) 13% 11 0%

The cumulative amount of actuanal gans, net of losses, recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense since adoption of
IFRS 1s £5,467,000 (2006 £2,200,000)
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36 Share-based payments

Farr values have been calculated and charged to operating profit for all share-based payments These consist of grants of shares and share
options under vanious schemes te directors, key managers and other employees Assumptions used and results of the fair value

calculations are set out below

Exercise Shares under Sharesunder  Shares under
price aplien at option at optran at Vesting
pence 010106 311206 311207 periods
Savings Related Share Option Scheme — 2003 awards i47 63 214,842 38,836 11,122 3to Syears
Savings Related Share Option Scheme — 2004 awards 147 48 157,959 103,279 - 3 years
Savings Related Share Option Scheme — 2005 awards 11384 429,230 212,603 155,015 3to Syears
Savings Related Share Qption Scheme - 2007 awards 14004 - - 237,935 3tob5years
Share Option Plan 2002 — 2003 awards 25698 and 243,748 208,248 176,934 3 years
282 82
Share Option Plan 2002 — 2005 awards 14353and 1,559,057 1,214,509 1,013,551 3 years
107 59
Long-term incentive Plan — deferred shares — 2004 award - 13,076 13,076 - 3 years
Long-term iIncentive Plan — matchung shares — 2004 award - 55,405 55,405 - 3 years
Long-term Incentive Plan - defemred shares - 2005 award - 27,923 27,923 35,901 3 years
Long-term Incentive Plan — matching shares — 2005 award - 158,652 156,652 - 3 years
Performance Share Plan — 2006 award - - 952,930 1,014,179 3 years
Performance Share Plan — 2007 award - - - 636,217 3 years
2,859,992 2,983,511 3,280,854

Assumptions

The share pnce used in the calculation of fair value has in each case been the share pnice on the date of grant

SAYE awards must be exercised wathin six moniths of vesting Assumed life terms have accordingly been set at either 3 25 years or

5 25 years for these awards Share Opticn Flan 2002 awards may be exercised within three to 10 years from the date of award
Exercise of these options 1s assumed to be spread through this penod Fixed three-year terms have been assumed for the Long-term
Incentrve Plan {“LTIP") and Performance Share Plan (“PSP") awards

The expected volatility 1s based on historical volatility over penods which comrespond to the forward life assumptions for each category of
award, being 3 25 to 5 25 years for SAYE awards, six years effective average for Share Option Plan 2002 awards and three years for LTiP
and PSP awards Two pencds of exceptional volatility have been excluded, with additional hustorical data substituted in their place

The nsk-free rate of interest assumed 1s the rate of interest obtainable from government securities over the same expected terms as

have been used for the volatility calculations

The dwidend yield assumed has been calculated using publicly avallable informaticn at the respective grant dates, being the hustonical

dmdend yield

The LTI? matching shares awards and PSP award are subject to a total shareholder return ("TSR") vesting condition This condition has

been allowed for in the calculations of fair vafue

Lapsing rates of 10% per annum have been assumed for SAYE awards, 7 5% per annum for Share Option awards and 0% for LTiP

and PSP awards

The options outstanding at 3 1st December 2007 had a weighted average remaning contractual hfe of 54 years (2006 6 2 years)
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36 Share-based payments continued
Results of calculations of fair value
The fair value of share-based transactions has been calculated using a stochastic smulation modelling technique, developed in consuftation

with an iIndependent third party advisor The credit so calculated for 2007 15 £20,000 (2006 charge of £315,000) The elements of this
{creditycharge analysed by share-based transaction are as follows

Total far Total fair

value charge/ value charge/

Farr value of (credit) (credit)

one option 2007 2006

£ £000 £000

Savings Related Share Option Scheme - 2003 awards 047 3 8
Savings Related Share Option Scheme - 2004 awards 054 s 18
Savings Related Share Option Scheme - 2005 awards 069and 073 35 37
Savings Related Share Option Scheme — 2007 awards 09tand 105 27 -
Share Opticn Plan 2002 - 2003 awards 072and 0 87 - -
Share Option Plan 2002 — 2005 awards 048 and 0 43 - 178
Long-term Incentive Plan - deferred shares — 2004 award 181 - 6
Long-term Incentive Plan — matdhing shares - 2004 award 083 - 15
Long-term Incentive Plan — deferred shares — 2005 award 144 - 9
Long-term Incentive Plan — matching shares - 2005 award 085 - 45
Performance Share Plan — 2006 award 084 251 180
Performance Share Plan — 2007 award 107 174 -
Wirtebacks of charges taken in prior years (515) (181)
Total (credit/charge (20) 315
Total far Total far

value credit value charge

2007 2006

£000 £000

(Credited)/charged to continuing operations (20) 221
Charged to discontinued operations - 94
Total (credit)/charge (20) 315

Where eamings per share targets defined within plan rules were not met, amounts previousty charged have been credited back to the
Income statement

37 Share option schemes

The following table sets out options in issue under the vanous Company schemes at the beginning and end of the year and movements
dunng the year Share options in 1ssue expire after a certain time and exercise dates vary Exercise nghts are subject to the rules of the
schemes and share options in issue are not normally exercisable untl the expiry of a penod of at least three years In addition,
achievement of performance targets 1s normally required in ali schemes except the SAYE Scheme

During the year to 31st Decemiper 2007 an adjustment was made to the number of options In1ssue so as to add a proportien, calculated
tobe 6 4274%, equivalent to the bonus element of the March 2007 nghts issue  Assoniated wath this, an adjustment was also made to
the exercise pnce of each option In issue to reduce that by the same proportion

The weighted average share price for share options exeraised dunng the penod was 183p (2006 121p)

The number of options that had vested and were exercisable at 31st December 2007 was 643,079 (2006 845,805) The average exercise
pnce of these vested and exercisable options was 308 82p at 31st December 2007 (2006 341 83p)
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Movements m the year to 31st Decernber 2007 were as follows

Adjustment of
Dateof  Adjusted option In 1ssue 64274% Granted n Exercasedin Lapsed in In tssue
15508 prce pence 15t Jan 2007 in the year the year the year theyear  31st Dec 2007
Company Share Option Plan 1996
Aprll 1998 22222 4,661 300 - - - 4,961
October 1998 31900 4602 296 - - (4,898) -
Apnl 1999 38285 7,998 514 - - (3,102} 5410
October 1999 560 48 12,915 830 - - (4,947} 8,798
May 2000 39933 59,110 3,799 - - (15,721) 47,188
March 2001 50974 12,248 787 - - (4.125) 8,910
QOctober 2001 479 20 11,764 756 - - {6,260} 6,260
Apnl 2002 51115 11,028 709 - - {5,869) 5,868
124,326 7,991 - - (44,922) 87,395
Employee Share Option Scheme 1996
Aprl 1998 222 22 6,183 397 - - - 6,580
Aprl 1999 382 89 8,285 533 - - - 8,818
May 2000 399 33 57.260 3,680 - - (6,196) 54,744
March 2001 509 74 42,844 2,754 - - {12,832) 32,766
October 2001 479 20 47,353 3,044 - - {45,910) 4,487
Apnl 2002 51115 39,522 2,540 - - (16,629) 25,433
201,447 12,948 - - {81,567) 132,828
Share Option Plan 2002
July 2002 25135 130,297 8,375 - - (12,950) 125,722
October 2002 19967 171,764 11,040 - - (62,604) 120,200
June 2003 25698 112,248 7,215 - - - 119,463
November 2003 282 82 96,000 6,170 - - (44,699) 57,471
January 2005 14353 1,122,806 72,167 - {119,160) {159,859} 915,954
November 2005 107 59 91,703 5,894 - - - 97,597
1,724,818 110,861 - (119,160) (280,112} 1,436,407
Savings Related Share Option Scheme
April 2001 42019 4,073 - - - (4,073) -
Apnl 2002 427 33 9,019 - - - (9,019 -
April 2003 147 63 38,886 671 - (8,108) (20,327} 11,122
April 2004 14748 103,279 - - {26,620} (76,659) -
April 2005 11384 212,603 9,216 - {19,162) (47,642) 155,015
May 2007 14004 - - 280,100 - (42.165) 237,935
367,860 9,887 280,100 (53,890} {199,885) 404,072
Total 2,418,451 141,687 280,100 (173,050} (606,486} 2,060,702
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37 Share option schemes continued
Movements in the year to 31st December 2006 were as follows

Date of Option Inssue Adjustment Granted in Exercised in Lapsed in In 1ssue
ssue price pence  Ist Jan 2006 n the year the year the year the year  31st Dec 2006
Company Share Option Plan 1996
April 1998 236 50 4,661 - - - - 4,661
October 1998 33950 4,602 - - - - 4,602
April 1999 407 50 7,998 - - - - 7,998
October 1999 596 50 12,915 - - - - 12,915
May 2000 42500 85,876 - - - (26,766) 59,110
March 2001 54250 24,526 - - - (12,278) 12,248
Cctober 2001 51000 17,646 - - - (5,882) 11,764
Apnl 2002 544 00 11,028 - - - - 11,028
169,252 - - - {44,926) 124,326
Employee Share Option Scheme 1996
April 1998 236 50 48,466 - - - (42,283) 6,183
Apnl 1999 407 50 20,417 - - - (12,132) 8,285
May 2000 42500 106469 - - - (49,209) 57,260
March 2001 542 50 66,006 - - - {23,162) 42,844
October 2001 51000 49,314 - - - (1,961) 47,353
Apnl 2002 544 00 39,522 - - - - 39,522
330,194 - - - (128,747) 201,447
Share Option Plan 2002
July 2002 26750 201,304 - - - (71,007) 130,297
October 2002 21250 171,764 - - - - 171,764
June 2003 27350 112,248 - - - - 112,248
November 2003 30100 131,500 - - - {35,500) 96,000
January 2005 152 75 1,467,354 - - - (344,548) 1,122,806
November 2005 114 50 91,703 - - - - 91,703
2,175,873 - - - (451,055} 1,724,818
Savings Related Share Option Scheme
Aprit 2001 44720 10,106 - - - (6,033} 4,073
Aprnl 2002 454 80 10,528 - - - (1,508} 9,019
Apnl 2003 15712 214,942 - - - (176,056} 38,886
April 2004 15696 157,959 - - - (54,680) 103,279
Aprl 2005 12116 429,230 - - (469) (216,158) 212,603
822,765 - - (469)  (454,436) 367,860
Total 3,498,084 - - 469) (1,079,164) 2418451
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Five year summary

As stated histonically Continuing operations

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Group income statement
Revenue 423,161 389,839 205,724 172,640 179,623
Operating profit{loss) 20,392 {41,920) 17,433 18,606 13,148
Exceptional itermns {2,680) - - - -
Profit/(loss) before net finance expense 17,712 {41,920) 17,433 18,606 13,148
Net finance expense {4,110) (5,608} (5,642) (4,810 (4,234)
Profitfloss) before taxation 13,602 {47,528) 11,791 13,796 8914
Tax expense (4,353) (2,364} (3,140) (4,227} (3,085)
Profit(loss) for the year 9,249 {49,892) 8,651 9,569 5,829
Profit/{loss) attributable to sharehotders 9,202 {50,010) 8,448 9,545 5,829
Profit attnbutable to equity mnerity interests a7 118 203 24 -
Profit{loss) for the year 9,249 {49,892} 8,651 9,569 5.829
Basic earningsfloss) per 10p share 988p (53 62p) 928p 10 26p 539

The results for 2005, 2006 and 2007 are for continuing operations cnly It has not been practicable to restate prior years to exdude the
now discontinued operations, hence results for these years are stated without amendment from those previously repoited

The results for 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007 are presented consistent with the application of IFRS The results for 2003 are presented
consistent with UK GAAP as had then been applied Results for 2003 are not therefore directly comparable with those for subsequent years

In particular, matenal differences are as follows

* Itemns that would have been charged to exceptional items under UK GAAP were charged 10 operating profit under IFRS in 2004,
*  Goodwill amortisaticn that was charged under UK GAAP in 2003 was not charged under IFRS in 2004, 2005, 2006 or 2007,

* Intangible assets have been recogrised and amortised under IFRS tn 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007,

* A charge for share-based payments has been made under IFRS in 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007, and

* Charges relating to defined benefit pension schemes have been calculated differently under IFRS than had been the case under
UK GAAP

The 2004 operatmg loss 1s stated after charging £62,021,000 that had been accounted for as exceptional items, including goodwill
imparrrment, under UK GAAP

EarningsAloss) per share figures for 2006 and pnor years have been adyusted to allow for the bonus element of the nghts 1ssue made
In 2007
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Five year summary continued

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Group balance sheet
Goodwilt 161,085 114,199 112,839 84,369 97,191
Other intangtble assets - 641 739 408 485
Property, plant and equipment 12,968 7,534 5,105 3,647 3,558
Other nen-current assets - 6,629 7.336 5,710 2,964
Total non-current assets 174,053 129,003 127,018 94,134 104,198
Current assets excluding cash 61,496 50,928 39,632 28,031 29,682
Currert and non-current ilabilities excluding borrowings (57,284) (64,085) (47,587 (33,552) (28.664)
Net operating assets 178,265 115,846 115,064 88,613 105,216
Net borrowings (89,344) (84,622) {79,889) (76,698) {57,968)
Net assets 88,921 31,224 39,175 11,915 47,248
Share capital 8,763 8,763 8,763 8,763 11,284
Share prermum account 43,222 43,224 43,224 43,225 71,439
Other reserves 37,004 (20,813) (13,0865) (40,073) {35,475)
Equity shareholders” funds 88,989 31,174 38,922 11,915 47,248
Equity minonty interests (68) S0 253 - -
Total equity 88,921 31,224 39,175 11,915 47,248
As stated histoncally Contnuing operations
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
£00C £000 £000 £000 £000
Group cash flow statement
Net cash inflow from operating actwvities before exceptional items 24,390 26,692 20177 20,211 8,010
Cash flow from exceptional items (1,899) - - - -
Interest paid, net (3.744) (5,556) {5,526) (4,495) (4,202}
Tax paid (5,711) (3.930) (4,390} (4,513) (2,277
Capital expenditure, net (5,730) {(2,543) {326) (1,109) (1,475)
Acquisitions and disposals (29,285) {4,562) (3,735 749 (8,679)
Equity dividends paid (8,420) (5,381) (2,190) (2,629) {(3,382)
Issue of shares 216 2 - 1 30,735
Increasef{decrease) In loans and overdrafts 25,229 (6,671) (3,614) (5,197) {18,286) !
{DecreaseMincrease in cash (4,354) (1,949) 396 3,018 444 !

The cash flows for 2005, 2006 and 2007 are for continuing operations only It has not been practicable to restate prior years to exdude
the now discentinued operations, hence cash flows for these years are stated without amendment from those previously reported

The figures for 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007 are presented consistent with the application of IFRS The figures for 2003 are presented
consistent with UK GAAP as had then been applied Figures for 2003 are not therefore directly comparable with those for subsaquent years

In particular, materal differences are as follows

* ltems that would have been charged tc exceptional items under UK GAAP were charged to operating profit under IFRS in 2004,
*  Goodwill amortisation that was charged under UK GAAP In 2003 was not charged under IFRS in 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007,

*  Intangible assets have been recognised and amortised under 'FRS in 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007, and
s Defictts relating to defined benefrt pension schemes have been incorporated into balance sheets under IFRS
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Shareholder information

Finanaial calendar

Annocuncement of 2008 results (provisional)

For the half-year August 2008
For the year March 2009
Annual Report and Accounts circulated March 2009
Annual General Meeting May 2009
Dividends

Proposed final dwvidend 2007

Announcement 10th Apnl 2608
Ex-dividend 25th June 2008
Record date 27th June 2008
Payment date 25th July 2008
Intenm dividend 2008 (provisional)

Announcement August 2008
Payment October 2008

Analysis of shareholdings

On 1st April 2008 (the latest practicable date for analysis), the Company had 1,091 shareholders who held 112,844,209 shares between

them, analysed as follows

Number of % of Number of % of
shareholders shareholders shares shares
Size of holding

1-5,000 239 7690 854,604 076
5,001 - 50,000 i65 1513 2,508,103 222
50,001 - 100,000 27 247 2,071,894 184
100,001 and over 60 550 107,409,608 9518
1,091 10000 112,844,209 100 00

Type of shareholder
Indwiduals 772 7076 1,912,613 169
Nominee companies* 276 2530 106,635,247 94 50
Other corporate and public bodies 43 394 4,296,349 381
1,091 10000 112,844,209 100 00

15 C& o1y INCiudes the benenidanes of pension Tunas, unit trusts, ite assurance companies and investment tru
* This category inciudes the benef f pension funds, unit trusts, If o d Investment trusts

Share registrar

The Company's registrar 1s Computershare Investor Services PLC, PO Box 82, The Pavilions, Bndgwater Road, Bristol BS99 622
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Registered office and advisors

Registered office
Allen House

Station Road

Egham

Surrey TW20 9NT
www nestorplc co uk

Finanaial advisors and stockbrokers
Investec Bank (UK) Limited

2 Gresham Street

London EC2V 7GP

Auditors

BDO Stoy Hayward LLP
Prospect Place

85 Great North Road
Hatfield

Hertfordshire AL9 5BS

Registrars

Computershare Investor Services PLC
PO Box 82

The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristof BS99 622
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Solicitors
Eversheds LLP
Senator House

85 Queen Victona Street

London ECAV 4)L

Principal bankers
Barclays Bank PLC
1 Churchill Place
Londen E14 5HP

HSBC Bank plc
8 Canada Square
London E14 SHQ

KBC Bank NV

5Sth Floor

111 Old Broad Street
London EC2N 1BR
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